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Cautionary Statement

This annual report contains various forward-locking statements regarding events and trends that are subject
to risks and uncertainties that could cause the actual results and financial position of the Group to differ
materially from the information presented herein. When used in this report, the words “estimate”, “project”,
“intend”, “anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”, “should” and similar expressions, as they relate to the Group, are
intended to identify such forward looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue refiance on
these forward-looking statements, which spezk only as of the date hereof. Save as otherwise required by any
rules or regulations, the Group does not undertake any obligations publicly to release the result of any
revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to

reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.
The risks and uncertainties referred to above include:

- actions or decisions by governmental and regulatory bodies, or changes in the regulatory framework
in which the Group operates, which may impact the ability of the Group to carry on its businesses;

- changes or advances in technalogy, and availability of resources such as spectrum, necessary to use
new or existing technology, or customer and consumer preferences regarding technology;

- the performance of the markets in the UK, the EU and the wider region in which the Group operates;

- the ability of the Group to realise the benefits it expects from existing and future projects and
investments it is undertaking or plans to or may undertake;

- the ability of the Group to develop, expand and maintain its breadcast and machine-to-machine
infrastructure;

- the ability of the Group to obtain external financing or maintain sufficient capital to fund its existing
and future investments and projects;

- the Group's dependency on only a limited number if key customers for a large percentage of its
revenue; and

- expectations as to revenues not under contract.

Guidance note to the annual report:

In this document, references to ‘Argiva’ and ‘the Group' refer to Argiva Group Limited ("AGL’) and its subsidiaries and
markets as the context may require. References to the ‘Company’ refer to the results and performance of Argiva Group
Limited as a standalone entity.

Areference to a year expressed as 2021 is to the financial year ended 30 june 2021. This cenvention applies similarly to
any reference to a previous or subsequent financial year. Additionally, references to ‘current year’, ‘this year’ and ‘the year’
are in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2021. References to the ‘prior year’ and ‘last year’ are to the financial
year ended 30 June 2020,
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Argiva in 2021

ENABLING A SWITCHED-ON WORLD TO FLOW

Who we are

Argivo is a feading UK communications infrastructure business, We are behind the scenes
delivering millions of vital connections to enable millions of people, businesses, and machines to
connect wherever they are through TV, radio and machine-to-machine data services, enabling a

switched-on world to flow.

Qur Infrastructure

c. 1,450
broadcast transmission sites in
the UK

1,150 TV transmissions sites

98.5%
of the UK population reached
through our TV services

275 channels
delivered into the UK and Ireland

Market leader for commercial
DTT! spectrum
owning two of the three main
national commercial multiplexes

1,100 TV channels delivered
internationally
via satellite to 5 continents

99.5% targeted network coverage
across the North of England and
Scotland on our smart energy
networks

¢.80 satellite dishes accessing
30+ satellites

12 million premises
can connect to our smart meter
networks

50 million data points
delivered every day on our smart
metering networks

! Refers to Digital Terrestrial Television best known for supporting Freeview
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How we operate

During 2021, following the sale of the Telecoms business, Argiva has implemented a new single
business organisation structure, moving away from the traditional business units and to an
integrated structure that will help better serve our customers, their delivery requirements and the
products and services that we provide across our Media Distribution and Smart Utilities Networks
markets

Key Strategic ambitions

Undisputed leader in UK TV and radio
broadcast

Transition global media to cloud solutions

UK'’s leading smart utilities platform

Innovator of scalable solutions for new
connectivity sectors
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Highlights

Following the sale of the Telecoms business at the beginning of the year, 2021 has continued to see a period of
change for Argiva with expected lower activity on certain major programmes as they reach completion. Whilst
core media distribution and smart utilities networks products have remained strong the Group has had
decreases on DTT multiplexes and has also seen the planned reduction in project levels related to the
completion of the 700 MHz Clearance programme. The Group is now aiso adapting to focus on key new
products for the future sustainability of the business.
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Key financrals i the year

- Revenue decrease of 28.3% {5.2% from continuing operations} and EBITDA decrease of 36.0% (15.1%
from continuing operations)

- Managed reductions in revenue and EBITDA from the 700MHz clearance programme as the major
works on the programme successfully completed in August 2020;

- Decreases due to lower renewal pricing following the end of legacy contracts on the main DTT
multiplexes;

- New revenues and EBITDA generated from utilisation of broadcast sites for telecommunications
equipment and transitional services following Telecoms sale;

- Continuing the delivery of the core smart energy metering contracts with max network coverage of
99.5% now reached;

- Increase in revenue from ramp up of activity on smart water metering networks and device sales
following contract wins in the prior year;

- Disposal of the Group’s Telecoms business for consideration of ¢, £2.0bn. A profit on disposal of
£1,038.3mis recognised in the Income statement;
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- Deleveraging of the Group following repayment of debt and swap instruments including £550.0m
facilities drawn, £108.0m senior term debt and £563.5m of senior bonds and notes.
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Key intluences on rovenue
Group revenue has decreased 28.3% in total and 5.2% from continuing operations reflective of the change in
focus of the husiness following discontinued aperations and the expected wind down of certain areas of the
business such as 700 MHz clearance following peak project activity in previous years.
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Key Intfuencds on EBITDA

The following waterfall chart demonstrates the year on year impact of total EBITDA for both continuing and
discontinued operations reflecting the key financial factors;
- Discontinged operations: Sale of the Telecoms business, completed on 8 July 2020
- Media Distribution: lower activity on 700MHz clearance programmes, pricing pressures and utilisation
on the main DTT multiplexes and increased site costs
- Smart Utilities Networks: Increased activity from water metering device sales
- Corporate: Focus on cost management and reduced staff costs
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Chairman’s Introduction

2021 performance

2021 has continued to be a year of challenge and change for the business. Following the sale of the Telecoms
business at the beginning of the year, we have continued to invest in our infrastructure and deliver services in
our core media distribution and smart utilities networks markets.

Despite the continuing backdrop of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have extended our presence in the utilities
sector with growing activity in the smart water metering business following contract wins with water companies
in the previous year. We have also had further wins in media distribution including new technelogy opportunities
in the Low Carth Orbit Market. These wins are key to the strategic priorities of the Group as we continue to
develop cur business.

The continuing business has seen a decline in revenue from previous years reflecting the change in our markets.
During the year, we have successfully completed the final 2 major activities for the 700MHz Clearance
programme in August 2020 with revenues declining as expectad now that the main activities have completed.
Whilst we have also faced challenges on pricing on DTT multiplexes, utilisation has improved through the year
with the launch of new channels including GB News.

Sale of the Telecoms Business

On 8 July 2020, Argiva completed the sale of its Telecoms infrastructure to Cellnex in a circa £2.0bn deal. This
transaction included the divestment of circa 7,400 of Argiva’s cellular sites, including masts and towers as well
as urban rooftop sites, and the right to market a further circa 900 of Argiva’s retained sites across the UK.
Relevant staff within the Telecoms business also transferred to Cellnex as part of the transaction. Through the
year, Argiva has continued to support the Cellnex UK business via Transitional Service Agreements (TSAs), the
majority of which had successfully completed prior to the year end.

The disposal proceeds were used to repay a partion of Argiva’s debt and related swaps enabling a significant
deleveraging of the Group’s debt levels.

Business Structure

Following the sale of the Telecoms infrastructure business, Argiva has adapted and changed how we operate.
The Group has undergone a significant restructuring in the year in order to right size and focus on cost
management for the smaller remaining business.

A key element of the Group reorganisation is a change in the operational structure. We have moved away from
our previous traditional business unit structure and adooted a new integrated operating madel. This change will
allow the Group to focus on the commercial and operational oppertunities for the business in order to better
serve our customers in their requirements for our products and services, placing productivity, innovation and
sustainability at the heart of what we do.

This restructuring, along with the transformation programme progressing across the business allows Argiva to
focus on its key markets with the priorities of becoming the undisputed leader in these sectors as well as
expanding the praduct offerings through innovation to build on our sustainability and continuously improve.

Qutlook

Our markets are continuously changing and developing as data is consumed in ever increasing ways. They are
dynamic markets with evoiving trends in how TV and radio content is delivered and the capabilities of machine-
to-machine networks in enabling energy and water companies to meet their sustainability targets. As we look
forward and turn our attention to our new strategy for the business, Argiva can continue to build on our leading
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position in these markets and utilise our assets to consolidate this position but also take advantage of the many
opportunities that our markets provide for our business to be able to continue to grow.

Finally, on behalf of the Board | would like to thank all of aur empioyees across the business for their continued
hard work and dedication to the successful provision of our services particularly through this period of significant
change for the business and the continued backdrop of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Mike Parton

Chairman

September 2021
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Chief Executive’s Statement

Transformation and Restructuring

Argiva has been transforming since 2018, and 2021 marked the start of the next chapter in this journey with
the sale of our towers business; supporting our strategy to become a simpler business that is more focussed
and effective.

We have reduced costs and implemented a new integrated operating model, designed to enable us to focus on
driving improvements in operational delivery and efficiency. Our focus now moves to the commercial and
operational streams in order to give a clearer line of sight, and a shared accountability for customer delivery
and achievermnent of our business objectives. Importantly, this change during the year took a halistic approach
to the requirements of our business and custamers, and the expertise needed to achieve this. This has resulted
in a headcount reduction in Q4, allowing us to start 2022 with a right-sized business as well as investing in new
skills aligned to our strategic and growth priorities.

We have also progressed the phased delivery of our Digital Transformation Programme through the year,

successfully launching the Service and Finance modules, with the implementation of our new ServiceNow and
Oracle ERP platform respectively. Our Digital Transformatian Programme will take until early 2022 to be fully
complete, but the benefits are already being realised across the business due to the phased roll out approach.

Financial Perfermance

Our financial results for the year are refiective of the period of change being faced across both our media
distribution and smart utilities networks markets. Revenue has decreased 5.2% fram continuing operations.
This reflects the expected decrease in activity on externally funded major projects such as 700MHz clearance,
which peaked in previous years and successfully completed in August 2020. Our TV and radio breadcast
products in the media distribution market remain strong and whilst we saw revenues reduce year on year from
our DTT multiplexes reflecting a resetting of market pricing, underlying performance was strong with a number
of renewals and new contract wins such as GB News and Sky Arts increasing the channe! utilisation on our
main multiplexes to 97%.

In the Utilities market, the core CSPN energy metering network has shown stable performance. In the water
metering markets, we have experienced growth with increased activity following contract wins with Anglian
Water in the prior year. Device sales in particular have grown as our customers benefit from increased
deployment across all of our smart utilities netwarks.

Across the board we have focussed on new product development trials that have met with positive customer
response and that will drive growth in future years.

Response to COVID-19

Through the year we have continued to maintain the high availability of our services across the country despite
the constraints imposed by the COVID-19 pandemic. We have carefully balanced the safety of our employees
while allowing our key workers to deliver services for our customers, and were well prepared for the aimost
overnight changes required to provide alternative working arrangements to support remote working for office-
based staff. We have responded and adhered to the government guidelines, ensuring that all our sites fully
conformed. In response to the dramatic fall in advertising revenues we stepped in to provide a package of
deferred and reguced transmission fees; this enabled many smaller commercial and community radio stations
to weather the pressure on cash flows and enable their survival.

12
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Strategy

We acknowledge the world is changing. Considering this, over the last year we have evaluated market trends
and worked closely with our customers and policy makers to establish a new vision, purpose, strategy and
operating model, Our enduring purpose is ‘Enabling a switched-on world to flow’ and this wil! guide us to build
a sustainable future for Argiva. We have four clear ambitions, each with clear strategies:

- To remain the undisputed leader in UK TV and radio broadcast

- To transition our global media portiolic to cloud solutions

- To become the UK’s leading smart utilities platform

- To innovate providing of scalable connectivity solutions in new markets

More information on our strategy can be found on page 19.
Outlook

Argiva enjoys a large number of long-term inflation-linked contracts which provide good visibility of future
revenues. However, in order ta enable business growth we will continue to evolve our product and service
portfolios in both media distribution and smart utilities netwarks markets.

In our Media Distribution markets this has begun with the develapment of new solutions using cloud-based IP
technology, and in opening new revenue streams in the Low Earth Orbit satellite market, utilising Argiva’s
unique infrastructure assets and spectrum ta deliver connectivity solutions ta this fast growing market
segment.

We have also engaged widely with the utility industry to establish a number of proof of concept trials which
build on our existing capabilities and infrastructure. These include triais of “hybrid cannectivity” services that
utitise our sateliite and private radio capabilities.

More content is being delivered through mare devices and on more channels than ever before. Our markets
are looking for seamless access to connectivity and information that continues to meet the speed of
technology changes and delivers mission critical data reliably. These new products and services along with our
enduring and sustainable strategy are fundamental to how we operate in the future.

Paul Donavan
Chief Executive Officer

September 2021

13
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Business Overview

Enabling a switched-on world to flow

At the heart of media distribution and smart utilities networks in the UK and abroad, Argiva provides critical
data, netwaork, and communications services.

Argiva works in partnership with our customers, in the UK and around the world, building and operating the
complex ecosystems and infrastructures through which data and content can move effectively, securely, and
sustainably at scale — whether that’s through broadcasting and transmission services, or smart networks for
energy and water.

Argiva is the only national provider of terrestrial tefevision and radio broadcasting and provides machine-to-
machine connectivity for smart metering within the utilities sector. Argiva has invested significantly allowing it
to develop its communications infrastructure and technology as markets evolve.

Argiva earns network access and transmission service revenues from its customers, as well as fees for
engineering services and new projects. Argiva’s services tend to be mission-critical for its customers, as well as
providing the network coverage necessary for the fulfilment of the universal service obligations ("USQOs’) for
terrestrial broadcast customers as set out in their operating licences from the UK government.

Whilst we have a small overseas presence, Arqiva’s assets, operations and markets are predominantly within
the UK and our business is driven fram this region; therefore, we have minimal exposure to international
markets, Brexit impacts or foreign exchange.

Argiva has invested significantly into our capital infrastructure and has £1.4bn of property, plant, and equipment
at 30 June 2021. We are financed through a mixture of equity and long-term debt, with an average maturity
debt profile of over 4 years. The Group’s senior debt has an investment grade (BBB) rating from Standard and
Poor’s and Fitch and a juniar debt rating of B-B1 from Fitch and Moody's.

Attractive U¥ communications infrastructure market

DTT (Freeview) is the most popular TV platform in the UK covering 98.5% of the population

Smart networks deliver around 50 miltion data points every day

A market leader

Sole provider of terrestrial television network access (Freeview)
Owner of 2 of the 3 main national commercial multiplexes

Pre-eminent role in radio broadcasting both locally and nationally

High barriers to entry

Owner of critical national UK infrastructure that enables Public Service Broadcasters (PSB’s) to meet their
government mandated universal coverage obligations

Significant investrment would be required to replicate the infrastructure, including planning permissions to
erect new masts

Long established relationships with its customers spanning mare than 80 years

14
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Since 1922, Argiva has been enabling a switched-on world to flow.
We delivered the world’s first TV broadcast for the BBC from the tower at London’s Alexandra Palace in 1936.

We also developed satellite TV in the 1970’s, Teletext, and launched the UK's national DAR radio and digital
television networks in the 2000s.

There's no resting on our laurels though. We were the first company in Europe to trial 5G fixed wireless access
technology in 2017, and we are currently working with our media distribution partners to develop new ways to
reach their viewers and listeners via the Cloud.

Plus, we have moved into new sectors, like Utilities. We won our first contract to deliver gas and electricity
metering in the north of England and Scotland in 2013 and followed that in 2015 with a partnership with Thames
Water to set up and run the world’s largest smart water metering network. More recently we have launched
our dual band communications device for further improved connection capabilities.

The Group’s technology and infrastructure, combined with our history and experience, enable us to work with
everyone from major broadcasters {such as the BBC, ITV, Sky, Turner and Canal+) to independent radio groups
and utility companies {such as Thames Water and Anglian Water) to the Data Communications Company (DCC).

15
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Business model

The demand for information, content and entertainment is greater than ever. We all want to be connected 24/7.
This is the challenge that our customers are facing, delivering more content on more devices than ever hefore.

At Argiva we are enablers, applying our knowledge and expertise to technologies in order to unlock new
opportunities for our customers. We work in partnership, building and operating the infrastructure through
which data and content can flow effectively, securely, and sustainably.

Argiva seeks to maximise shareholder value by investing in our considerable site portfolio to not just maintain
reliability, but also to maximise its potential. Our infrastructure and commercial operations cover the following
key sectors:

- Media Distribution
- Smart Utilities Networks

Sate of Telecoms

On 8 July 2020, Arqiva successfully completed the sale of our Telecoms business to Cellnex in a circa £2.0bn deal.
The transaction comprised the divestment of ¢. 7,400 of Argiva's cellular sites, including masts and towers as
well as urban rooftop sites, and the right to market a further c. 900 sites across the UK. In the execution of the
agreement, the Group has sold six subsidiary entities, the largest being Argiva Services Limited.

Following this disposai, the Group entered a period of evolution launching a new purpose and strategy. There
has been a change in the organisational structure of the Group, moving away from the traditional business units
and adopting an integrated operating model in order to better serve our customers with their requirements for
our products and services.

Media Distribution
The UKs only supplier of natienal terrestriaf television and radio broadcasting services
7 out of 10 UK households receive content for their main TV service through our Satelflite and DTT network

Qur radio infrastructure supports a range of services across the UK with 300 stations on DAS and 380 stations
across FM, AM, and MW

Media distribution services remain incredibly important for viewers and listeners in the UK. Even as viewing
habits change, Ofcom reports 85% of people continue to watch broadcast content every week, And 9 out of 10
UK adults listen to ever 20 hours of radio each week.

In an intensely competitive world, large media companies are increasingly focused on monetising content that
is distributed multi-market, multi-platform and multi-device. This means increased complexity in reaching their
audiences, whilst also trying to reduce costs. To achieve a truly global reach, a shift of focus is needed to IP-
based delivery through the cloud and we are well positioned as the UK media hub to do this.

Media Distribation at Argiva

The media distribution infrastructure includes sites for the transmission of terrestrial TV and radio, operates the
Group's licensed multiplexes, owns and operates teleports at key locations in the UK, as well as international
terrestrial fibre distribution network, media facilities, leased satellite capacity and delivers related engineering
projects.

The Group utilises a network of 1,150 TV sites to carry Freeview into circa 24 million households every day,
making it the UK’'s most popular TV platform. Argiva’s critical national infrastructure provides coverage to 98.5%
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of the UK’'s population. Within the sector, Argiva holds a regulated position as the sole provider of network
access for terrestrial television broadcasting,

Argiva is a market leader in commercial DTT spectrum, owning the licences for two of the three main national
commercial DTT multiplexes, enabling ieading broadcasters such as Sky, UKTV, CBS and Turner to deliver
broadcasting content using our channel capacity.

Argiva also owns the HD-enabled DTT multiplex licences that provide services to Freeview and other DTT-related
platforms. Additionalty, Arqiva operates more than 1,500 transmission sites for TV and radio, providing coverage
to the circa 90% of the UK population that listen to the radio. Argiva is a shareholder in, and operator for both
commercial national DAB radio multiplexes and it is the service provider for the BBC national DAB radio
multiplex.

During the year the Group has successfully completed the programme to clear the 700MHz frequency range of
television signals,

The Group is also the UK’s leading independent owner and operator of teleports and media management
facilities, serving many of the world’s largest multi-channel broadcast and sports-right organisations, as well as
providing data connectivity to the utilities and natural resources sectors.

Argiva manages the distribution of more than 1,100 international TV channels for high profile customers
including Al fazeera, Discovery, BT Sport, Sky, NBCU, Sony and Turner including coverage of high-profile sporting
events. Argiva’s operation of reliable and secure VSAT (Very Small Aperture Termina!) communications networks
acrass the globe utilises a world class satellite and fibre network, providing realtime critical communications to
remote locations. Argiva uses our expertise and experience to enable us to keep pace with rapidly changing
dynamics and technology advancements, thereby underpinning the longevity and success of the product base.
Argiva’s satellite network delivers content to the UK's major Direct-to-Home {DTH) platforms including Sky and
Freesat as well as the increasingly popular IPTV, mobile and weh TV platforms. We have also recently engaged
with the Low Earth Orbhit satellite sector.

Media distribution contributes significant and stable cash flows to the Group with a long-term contracted,
substantially RPi-linked order book of £3.6bn (2020: £3.3bn) which includes major contracts running as far as
2050.
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Smart Utilities Networks

Advanced networks support the critical flow of data and content from connected TVs and smart meters for water,
gas, and electricity in the utilities sector.

Ambitious environmental and sustainability agendas from regulators are driving change across utility sectors,
providing huge opportunity for growth. Today less than 10% of UK premises have a smart water meter, and less
than 30% have a smart energy meter. With 20% of water lost through leaks, water authorities are focused on
reducing them, and eliminating pollution caused by sewer flooding. Smart meters are providing an opportunity
to meet sustainability targets through reducing the UK’'s overal! greenhouse gas emissions.

St Utditwes Networks ot Argivil

Argiva generates revenues with respect to the huild and operation of the smart ‘machine-te-machine’ networks
and other data transmission services applications. With a continuing focus on innovation and market
opportunities, Argiva is embracing the fast-developing machine-to-machine sector, particularly for utilities, for
which we utilise our Flex-net network across our smart metering contracts with utility and water companies.
The Group has invested in building M2M networks, which support major energy metering contracts spanning 15
years and covering more than 9 million premises, and water metering contracts which will cover 3 million homes.

Argiva has invested substantially in infrastructure as a result of these contracts which now result in recurring
cash flows during the long-term operational phases of the network delivery. The utilities business remains a key
part of the Argiva business and is a key strategic priority for growth with potential to become the UKs leading
srmart utilities platform.

The smart utilities network has an order book of £0.60n (2020: £0.7bn), with cantracts running as far as 2035.

Corporate

Corporate functions at Argiva comprise Finance, Legal & Regulatary, Information Technology and People and
Culture.
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QOur four strategic ambitions will guide the key focus ot the business. Our priorities in how we aim to achieve
these ambitions are set out below:

To be the undisputed leader in UK TV and radio broadcast

- Deliver sustainable TV and Radio broadcast, focusing on customer and operational excellence and
managing capacity and margins

- Leverage our scale and the cloud, enabling industry efficiency

- Expand services and drive renewals delivering greater value by selling across our portfolio of services,
creating long term partnerships while also developing value-added services in new areas

To transition global media to cloud based solutions

- Scaling IP and cloud-based services; investing in building broadcast quality cloud processing and
extending our footprint in live and events content

- Becoming the go-to choice for our partners in cloud distribution so they can better manage their
glohai content flows across all formats

- Growing multiplex service, using our infrastructure to provide virtual, cost-effective, and scalable
services to TV cable operators outside of the UK

To be the UK's leading smart utilities platform provider

- Leading in connecting UK smart meters, maintaining market leadership, and scaling our operations to
drive and accelerate the roll-out of domestic smart meters

- Broadening our product offering, developing new value-added data-driven services in monitering and
control, that reduce energy use, water wastage and poliution

- Diversifying through forging partnerships and widening technology choice, to deliver new hybrid
connectivity solutions and real time network monitoring

To be an innovator of scalable solutions for new, high connectivity sectors

- Warking with partners, building new solutions for new and emerging sectors that have growing and
more complex connectivity needs including those that make the most of our infrastructure, spectrum,

and satellite expertise
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Business Update

The Group’s contracted order book value for continuing operations at 30 June 2021 was £4.2bn (2020: £4.0bn),
including £100m of new contracts for DTT and £660m for utilisation of broadcast sites. A significant proportion
of the value of this order book relates to medium to long-term contracts which includes DTT and radio
transmission and smart energy and water metering, as well as other infrastructure services. The Group remains
focused on growth opportunities on targeted core infrastructure areas.

Media Distribution

700 MHz Clearance and DTT spectrum

The final stage auction results of the 700MHz and 3.6-3.8GHz spectrum was announced by Ofcom on 27 April
2021. Ofcom showed the four major operators BT/EE, Three, Telefonica UK (02} and Vodafone acquired all of
the 200MHz available across the 700MHz and 3.6-3.8GHz bands. Subject to the 3 months notice period being
triggered by the acquirors, Argiva will continue to have the right to remain in this specttum with our DVB-T2
multiplex untit June 2022. EE has been awarded the spectrum and stated in its press release that it secured it for
long-term strategic reasons and that it acknowledged that there were no handsets currently in the market to
support the band.

This wifl not affect Argiva’s main national multiplexes.

The main substantive works on the 700MHz Clearance project completed in August 2020. The final project
completion activities continue with a project team until around October 2021. Principal site works include
completion of permanent antenna works at Emley Moor, scheduled for Autumn 2021, and the removal of the
temporary mast at Emiey Moor in 2022, The team size continues to reduce as the project ramps down in
accordance with the agreed plan, with efforts focused on commercial and financial close-out.

DTT Multiplex

During the year the Groups signed and renewed a number of contracts which included new contracts with GB
Mews, Sky Arts and UKTV, and renewals with Dave, Yesterday and Dave Ja Vu. These contracts mature/extend —
The majority of these contracts have been extended to 2026. DTT multiplex channel utilisation has remained
high finishing the year at 97%.

TV viewing on the DT /Freeview platform has remained strong during the pandemic period as more people
stayed at home. TV has provided a vital way of keeping people informed, helping with social isolation and
entertainment. The wide reach of the DTT platform has been of vital national importance for delivering news
and other information to the whole nation and for supporting society during the current pandemic. TV
advertising, an important driver for DTT has also been showing positive trends. Media markets have been
recovering and some industry sources expect TV advertising to grow in excess of 10% this year. In May, ITV
reported that TV advertising trends have been positive since March and that it forecasts over 20% increase in
advertising revenues for the 2021 calendar year compared to 2020.

Government (DCMS) updates

In August 2021 the DCMS published the outcome of its consultation on DTT Multiplex licences. It has allowed
all national multiplexes to renew for a further period until 2034 and provides Ofcom with the powers to renew
the licences until this date. The decision included a provision for Ofcom to revoke the licences on spectrum
management grounds subject to 5 years notice but that this could not come into effect until 2030 at the
earliest. The decision and statement demonstrate strong long-term Government suppart for the OTT platform.

Separately, the Government cantinues its ongoing strategic review of public service broadcasting. There are a
number of strands to this. In June 2021 the DCMS outlined plans to consult on the sale of Channel 4 with the
consultation opening in June and running until September 2021. It also announced plans to review the
regulation of video on demand platforms. In July 2021 Ofcom published a set of recommendations to the
Government on the future of Public Service Madia (PSM) as part of its ‘Small Screen: Big Debate’ review.
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Cfeom’s report makes clear e ungoing importance of pubhc service media and the importance of continuing
to reach the widest possible audience and deliver universality. The Government is now considering these
recommendations and plans to publish a white paper later this year.

Radio

Argiva continues to play an active part in shaping the outcome of the DCMS led Radio and Audio review. It was
expected that the final report would be published before Parliament’s surnmer recess but that has now been
delayed until the start of the autumn. The review will support the need to protect spectrum for Radio until at
least 2030 and states there will be no analogue switch-off within this period. This is consistent with our long-
term planning assumptions,

On 22 July 2021 the DCMS published their consultation for National commercial DAB licencing. Argiva holds an
interest in both of the national commercial multiplexes: D1 licence {Argiva 10U% ownership) expiring in
November 2023 and SDL (Argiva has 40% ownership) expiring in March 2028. Argiva will lobby to secure an
automatic licence renewal to 2035.

The pandemic has underlined the public service role of both commercial radio and the BBC. Argiva continues to
deliver the levels of availability and consistency that our broadcast partners expect. The company’s role in
supporting the radio sector financially during the year has been recognised by Government and key
stakehoiders.

Customers continued to launch new stations on Argiva’s local DAB digital radio multiplexes across the country.
On the Sound Digital national multiplex (a joint venture of Arqiva 40%, Bauer 30% and Wireless Group 30%) a
21st station, Boom Radio, launched in March bringing Sound Digital up to 100% cccupancy. On Digital One {the
naticnal multiplex wholly owned by Argiva} some capacity was released by a data service and, following a
competitive tender, GB News has announced the launch of a radio station which will run in parallel with its new
TV channel. As a result, Digital One also continues to operate at full capacity.

Advertising revenues in both the local and national sectors have continued to improve following the easing of
restrictions. With the current trajectory suggesting there will be no more lockdowns and our customer’s
revenues returning, the right decision was made in March to cease any lockdown discounts and return more to
normal business. In addition to this we have launched national station Boom radio and are set to launch another
one shortly leaving our national muxes at full capacity again.

Low Earth Orbit Market

Argiva has been developing opportunities in the Low Earth Orbit market. This is a new technology that relies on
a constellation of thousands of small satellites orbiting the earth. By establishing muitiple connections to
multiple satellites, the technology can for example provide satellite broadband anywhere in the world. Key
players are SpaceX, Blue Origin and the recent UK Government investment in CneWeb plus established satellite
operators such as Telesat and ViaSat. This oppartunity requires groundstations and therefore Argiva has the
capability to serve this market. The Group has now secured two customers.
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Smart Utilities Networks

New proof of concepts

Argiva has engaged with utility customers and industry suppliers as we look to expand our presence in the
utilities industry. Building on our established credibility in critical national infrastructure and security we are
leveraging our relationships with existing and new utility customers by exploring a number of proof of cancepts
{PoCs). This includes a trial of “hybrid connectivity” services by utilising our satellite, cellular and private radie
solutions. This trial with SGN is on-going. We are also continuing water product trials demonstrating both sewer
level monitoring and leakage monitoring as a service. The PoCs will give our utility customers the opportunity te
improve the management of their operational networks and achieve their regulatary targets.

Anglian Water

In June 2020, following a competitive procurement process, Argiva was selected to deliver a smart metering
fixed network for Anglian Water. Designed to enhance Anglian’s water management capabilities, Argiva's
contract will support them on their mission to achieve ieakage and cansumption savings and meet Ofwat’s water
leakage targets for the next five-year period and beyond. During this initial five-year period, Argiva will deploy
the fixed network infrastructure to support the operation of over three-quarters of a million (789,000 target by
2025) smart water meters across 24 planning 2ones. Argiva will then operate this network for a further 15 years.
Covering both household and non-household properties, the project will support Anglian Water's target
planning zones including Norwich, Lincoln, Northampton and Peterborough, among others.

Anglian successfully commenced their meter rollout on 6 July 2020 which was less than ene month from contract
signature and as at 30 June we were providing services to over 225,000 installed meters.

Thames Water

Since April 2015, Argiva has delivered a smart metering network that enables the coilection, management and
transfer of metering data for Thames Water. At 30 June 2021, there were over 540,000 meters installed and well
over 12 million meter readings being delivered per day. It is currentty the largest smart water metering network
in the UK and has high coverage across the Thames Water London region. Recently we have installed network
in the Haslemere, Guildford area which is Thames' first smart meter deployment outside London,

In April 2021 Thames Water announced this development and that by using the smart metering data it has
helped to detect and prevent leaks on 28,000 customers’ private supply pipes which has saved 43 million litres
per day. Smart meters have helped Thames Water achieve what it described as the water industry's “biggest
reduction in leakage this century” and also having hit its regulatory target.

Northumbrian Water

Following a public competitive procurement, Argiva has been selected by Northumbrian Water Group to deliver
an initial roll-out of a smart metering network in Essex, where it operates as Essex & Suffolk Water. The project
will support Northumbrian Water in its commitment to deliver smart metering to customers within the current
Asset Management Plan (AMP 2020-2025), as well as meeting the company's target to ensure all domestic
meters are smart by 2035,

The five-year contract will see Argiva build and monitor the fixed-network infrastructure, delivering connectivity
to up to 11,000 domestic meters, replacing both meters already installed and installing new meters for un-
metered supplies in empty meter chambers which have been identified. Meters are provided by Argiva’s
metering partner Sensus, a Xylem brand. The network went live and installations began in May 2021,

Lessons learned from this initial implementation will be used to guide the subseguent smart-meter roll-out over
the rest of Northumbrian Water Group’s operating regions.

Yorkshire Water

Argiva was selected by Yorkshire Water to deliver and monitor a smart metering fixed-network trial as part of
its plans to revolutionise its leakage detection programme, This twao-year exercise will see Argiva build and
monitar the fixed-network infrastructure to facilitate the operation of new smart water meters for non-
household custamers across 30 of Yorkshire Water's areas. Designed to facilitate real-time monitoring, the
collection and presentation of frequent meter reading data provided by the service will allow Yorkshire Water
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to reduce demand fur waler by rapidly identifying leaks and helping customers understand their usage. Meter
installations began in mid-May 2020 and our network went live at the end of June 2020.

Other smart water metering trials
in the Midlands, Argiva has been participating in a multi-vendor, multi-technology smart water metering
evaluation trial with a major water company. Over this period, we have again proven the excellent performance
of our technology and managed service. We are extending and expanding the trial for a further 12 months, on
an exclusive basis, enabling the water company to evaluate fully the benefits ang establish a business case for a
future full smart metering roll-out.

In May 2021, with Final Determinations announced mid July 2021, under the Government special Green
Economic Recovery funding programme, OfWat has allowed significant spend for additional Smart Water
Metering Programmes tc be completed by April 2025, These awards have been made to Thames Water, Severn
Trent Water and South West Water.

Smart energy metering rollout

The Group’s smart metering communication network in the North of England and Scotland now covers 99.5% of
premises. There are currently over 1 million communications hubs operating on the network representing 20%
of the total UK communication hub installations. The customer, Smart DCC Ltd, (DCC), continues to submit
change requests that reflect new industry requirements, but at a reduced volume compared to the previous
periods.

The Group continues to support the DCC and their users ahead of meter rollout programmes. DCC has reported
that there are now ¢.8.5 million SMETS2 meters on the national network.

Corporate updates

CovID 19

As lockdown eases Argiva continues to provide essential communications infrastructure for our media
distributian and smart utilities networks customers. We have deployed business continuity plans as part of our
operational and financial risk mitigation, to ensure the safety of our staff and the ongoing provision of services
for our customers.

Measures are still in place across a number of areas including:

s Ensuring workplaces and activities conform to the Government’s COVID Secure guidelines;

*  Using rapid flow antigen tests for our key workers and encouraging all employees to order their own
rapid flow antigen tests;

= Implementing alternative working arrangements and technology to keep aur employees and
contractors safe;

e Ensuring that we plan and deliver our activities in line with government alert levels;

*  Ensuring regular communication with critical supptiers, identifying and managing any risks;

¢ Ensuring disaster recovery plans can be invoked for critical assets and systems;

= Considering risks to cyber security, which we have reviewed and further strengthened;

¢ Financial liguidity, which we review continually to ensure a robust position. We benefitted from the
Government’'s VAT deferral scheme but repaid the full amount in December 2020; and

» Following the change in government guidance on 19 July 2021 the measures implemented across
workplaces have been retaxed whilst seeking to ensure the safety of employees and contractors.

Management changes

On 1 March 2021, Adrian Twyning joined Arqiva as Chief of Operations. Adrian comes with significant experience
of leading large-scale aperations, designing systems and leading sizeable business change. Most recently Adrian
was Director of Transformation at Dixens Carphone, where he implemented new IT platforms, launched a new
service proposition and oversaw a programme of retail rationalisation. Previously Adrian was at British Gas
where he led a 4,000 strong Field Operations team and led changes to culture, process and technology. He
replaces Neil Taplin, who left the company at the end of March 2021.
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Transformation update

The Transformation Programme continues to deliver to plan with several releases to the business successfully
implemented in March, May and July 2021. These deliveries have provided the business with industry-leading
applications and integrations across Service Management (Service Now], 0SS, Asset Management (Siterraj and
Financial Management (ERP) capabilities. In turn, this prepares Arqgiva to be more responsive, agile and
efficient ir its existing day-to-day operations as well as in any future markets where it intends to compete.

Over the remainder of the 2021 calendar year, Transformation continues to deliver incremental enhancements
to these applications alongside the conclusion of the Cellnex TSA Exit obligations. Whilst the original ‘big 4’
components should conclude delivery in the 2021 calendar year, there are further deliveries currently
underway within the Utilities and Site management spaces. These are likely to spill over into the first calendar
quarter of 2022.

Sale of telecoms business

The sale of the Telecoms business to Cellnex completed in July 2020 and the Group’s operational and asset
separation has now largely been completed. Operationally, Argiva has been supporting Cellnex’'s UK business
via Transitional Services Agreements {TSA) originally planned for a period of up to 18 months from the deal
completion date. The majority of the TSAs have now completed, we expect the remainder to complete on or
before scheduled end dates across the various areas,
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Financial review

Financial Performance

For the year ended 30 June 2021, revenue for the Group was £647.2m, a decrease of 28.3% from £302.8min
the prior year on a total reported Hasis. Revenue from continuing operations for the year of £642.3mis a
decrease of 5.2% year on year from £677.5m in 2020. This decrease year on year is reflective of a period of
change for the Group and the markets in which we operate.

Wi

519.5 . 5564  (6.6)%

122.8 1211 1.4%

642.3 677.5 (5.2)%
4.9 225.3 (97.8)%

647.2 902.8 (28.3)%

Revenue from discontinued operations relates 1o the Group’s telecoms infrastructure business and related
assets which were sold on 8 July 2020.

Media Distribution

Total Media Distribution revenue has decreased 6.6% from £556.4m 1o £519.5m year on year. Our core
broadcast TV and radio distribution products have remained strong and stable during the year with inflationary
increases due to RPI linked long term contracts. This area has been marginally impacted by the COVID-19
pandemic with discounts provided to our independent commercial radio customers to support them through
this period.

These increases have however been offset by a decrease in revenue from the 700MHz Clearance programme.
This multi-year engineering programme saw completion of major works in August 2020 and expected lower
activity levels throughout FY21 as a result. Further decreases are due to reduced revenues on the main DTT
multiplexes owing lower renewal pricing following the end of legacy contacts. Utilisation in this area has however
increased in the second half of the year due to new contracts and channel launches for example with GB News,
Sky Arts and UKTV,

Also included within Media Distribution is £26m of new revenues related to the utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecommunications equipment and transitional services provided following the sale of the telecom’s towers
business to Cellnex.

Smart Utilities Networks

Revenues from Smart Utilities Networks have increased 1.4% year on year from £121.1m to £122.8m. This
increase is due to the ramp up of activity on water metering contracts that were won in the prior year, primarily
with higher revenue fram sale of devices. The core energy metering contracts have increased revenues, afthough
have seen slight decreases in project revenues due to incremental change requests activities which continue but
at a lower level than the previous years which benefitted from additional testing services provided to the DCC.
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Gross profit was £415.1m, representing a 34.3% decrease from £632.2m in the prior year. Gross profit from
continuing operations decreased by 14.6% year on year from £482. 4mto £412.2m. The decrease in gross margin
is driven by the reductions in revenues described above, particularly the expected reduction from the 700MHz
Clearance programme. There have been increases in cost of sales as a result of power and site casts an broadcast
sites together with changes in product mix with higher volumes of lower margin device sales within the Smart
utilities networks area which has caused the gross profit on continuing operations to decline mare than
revenues.

Other operating expenses from the continuing business were £79.8m, down 12.1% from £90.8m in the prior
year (total Group 2021: £80.2m; 2020: £109.2m). This decrease in operating expenses is largely driven by lower
labour costs following the sale of the Telecoms business and the initial savings from the subsequent restructuring
of the business. This has been partially offset by increases in other areas such as 1T licence and maintenance due
to news systems established as part of the Group’s digital transformation that has progressed in the year.

EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation’ and
includes add-backs for certain items charged to operating profit that are not considered to reflect the underlying
perfarmance of the business, A reconciliation of EBITDA to operating profit is presented on page 28.

384.2 (14.9)%

517 (19.1)%
(44.3) 17.6%

391.6 (15.1)%

2.5 131.4 {98.1)%
334.9 523.0 (36.0)%

Total EBITDA was £334.9m, a 36.0% decrease from the prior year of £523.0m and a 15.1% reduction in the
continuing business. The decrease in EBITDA from continuing operations has been driven by the reductions in
revenue as well as changes in product mix with increases in lower margin areas.

Within the Media Distribution business, EBITDA has reduced by 14.9%, from £384.2m to £327.1m. This has been
driven by the lower activity levels on the 700MHz clearance programme as well as lower pricing and channel
utilisation an the main DTT multiplexes. EBITDA has also been impacted by increased site costs.

EBITDA for the Group’s Smart Utilities Networks business has decreased from £51.7m to £41.8m, a decrease of
19.1%. Whilst revenues in the water metering areas have increased and new contracts won in the prior year
have ramped up, this change in product mix impacts margins due to revenues driven by high volumes of low
margin device revenues. Further decreases are due to the decrease in the core energy metering contracts.

Other EBITDA comprises costs for the non-revenue generating corporate areas of the business. The decrease in
these costs reflects the focus on cost management and transformation following the reorganisation of the
business including lower staff costs.

Depreciation has decreased £38.7m in total and £22.9m from the continuing business (2021: £167.9m; 2020:
£190.8m). Amortisation has decreased £0.7m in total and £0.6m from continuing operations (2021: £9.7m;
2020: £10.3m}. The collective decrease of depreciation and amortisation of 18.1% from continuing operations
is driven by a reduction in accelerated depreciation from the prior year period, particularly in connection with
assets replaced under the 700MHz clearance programme due to the lower activity in this area as the programme
winds down. Accelerated depreciation is expected to further decrease in subsequent years as these programmes
and the Group's transformation programme progress.
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Exceptiondl items charged to operating protit were £25.6m, increased from £15.5m in 2020 in relation to the
continuing business, Exceptional costs in the current year predominantly relate to the implementation of
changes in the organisational design and structure of the business as well as corporate finance and refinancing
costs.

Operating profit has decreased 50.0% {2021: £140.4m; 2020: £281.2m} across the Group and 25.2% in relation
to continuing operations {2021: £138.5m; 2020: £185.1m). This decrease is primarity driven by the impacts from
the trading performance of the business and increased exceptional expenditure due to projects undertaken in
the year, partially offset by the savings in depreciation due to managed lower activity levels on major capital
programmes and operating costs savings.

A recongitiation between operating profit and EBITDA is presented below:

Operating profit 140.4 281.2
Exceotl.onal |te.ms charged to )56 347
operating profit

Depreciation 168.5 207.2
Amortisation 8.7 10.4
Other income (8.3) (10.5)
Total EBITDA 334.9 523.0
EBITDA from discontinued operations 2.5 1314
EBITDA from continuing operations 332.4 391.6

Finance costs (net of finance income) were £660.4m, a decrease of 7.6% from £714.9m in 2020. This decrease is
predominantly due to the reduced principal debt amounts following the repayment of debt principal and swap
portfolio closed out in the year, as well as a reduction in interest on lease obligations following the Telecams
sale. This decrease has been partially offset by the compounding effect of interest on outstanding shareholder
loan note principal and accrued interest.

On 8 luly 2020, Argiva successfully completed the sale of its Telecoms business to Cellnex in a circa £2.0bn deal.
The transaction comprises the divestment of ¢. 7,400 of Argiva’s cellular sites, including masts and towers as
well as urban rooftop sites, and the right to market a further ¢.900 sites across the UK. In the execution of the
agreement, the Group has sold six subsidiaries, the largest being Argiva Services Limited. The Group has
recognised a £1,038.3m profit on disposal in exceptional gains for the year. The profit on disposal is recognised
net of deferred income generated in relation to future services for TSAs and utilisation of broadcast sites for
telecommunications eguipment.

The significant majority of the proceeds have been utilised to repay debt and related recoupon interest rate
hedging derivatives. On exit and recouponing of swap arrangements in the year, the Group has recognised £7.6m
of losses on the swaps and incurred £55.9m of break costs included in the other gains and losses balance in the
income statement. Further losses recognised in the year include £0.8m {2020: £8.1m loss) in relation to foreign
exchange movements an foreign denominated debt instruments prior to their settlement in July 2020. A loss of
£11.1m (2020: £121.7m gain) is recognised as a result of fair value movements of swaps, principally attributable
10 the servicing of derivatives and changes in market yields and credit spreads.

28



Arqiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2021

Profit before tax for the Group was £442.9m, an increase from a loss of £319.0m in the prior year. From
continuing operations, the loss before tax has increased from £400.3m in 2020 to £597.2m in the current year.
The profit/loss before tax is reported after non-cash charges of £756.9m (2020: £621.21m) as shown below:

Profit / (loss) before tax 4829 ‘ (319‘0‘)

Depreciation 168.5 207.2
Amortisation 9.7 10.4
Accrued interest on shareholder loan notes 529.8 465.9
Other non-cash financing costs’ 37.0 513
Foreign exchange revaluations an financing 0.8 8.1
Fair value movements on derivative financial instruments 11.1 {121.7}
Total non-cash charges 756.9 621.2
Adjusted profit before tax and non-cash charges 1,199.8 302.2

(including the disposal of the Telecoms business of £1,038.3m)

Cash Flow

Net cash inflow from operating activities was £398.7m, a 18.5% decrease from £489.0m in 2020. This decrease
is driven by the sale of the Telecoms business decreasing total operating profit and related operational cash
flows. This has been partially offset by higher working capital inflows. Working capital inflows have increased
due ta the recognition of one-off deferred income on additional contract liabilities offset by a decrease in
accruals following the payment of VAT deferred at 30 June 2020 uncer the government COVID-19 deferral
scheme that has now been fully repaid. Other working capital decreases are due to utifisation of cash received
from customers in advance {decreasing deferred income contracts liabilities) and timing of payments.

Capital expenditure on the purchase of tangible and intangible assets has decreased principally owing to
decreased expenditure on significant capital projects such as the 700MHz Clearance programme as activity ievels
continue to wind down following completion af main activities and lower growth capex on towers following the
Telecoms disposal. This has been partially offset by increases in maintenance transformation capital expenditure
which has increased in the year as the Group continues to deliver its digital transformation across the business.

P R

Net cash inflow from operating activities ) 3987 © 489.0

Purchase of tangible and intangible assets (86.1) (115.4)
Net capital expenditure and financial investment (86.1) {115.4)
Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment 312.6 373.6
activities

Cash Conversion as a % of EBITDA
Operating cash flow after capital and financial investment 93.3% 71.4%

? Includes amortisation of debt issues costs, unwinding of discount on provisions, imputed interest and interest
on lease liabilities
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Operating cash flow atter capital and financial investment activities was £312.6m, a decrease of 16.3% from
£373.6m in the prior year. This decrease has been principally driven by the change in the Group’s operations
following the sale of the telecoms business reducing operating cash flows and working capital movements
explained above, partially offset by the reduction in capital expenditure as capital programmes progress. With
strong cash conversion levels benefiting from high working capital inflows and continued reductions in capital
expenditure following completion of major programmes such as 700MHz Clearance.

The total cash flow for the year was a £133.4m inflow {2020: £89.8m inflow). This increase is owing to the
disposal proceeds received on sale of the telecoms business largely offset by the repayment of borrowings and
exit of swap arrangements and related costs incurred on deleveraging of the Group, as well as changes in
operating cash flows explained above.

Financial Position

Net liabilities were £3,570.3m, representing a decrease of 12.8% from £4,095.1m in the prior year. The net
liability position is primarily driven by the capital structure reflecting the shareho!der loan notes, borrowings,
lease liabilities and derivative financial instruments held, with decreases in these areas as a result of the
deleveraging of the Group with the proceeds on the sale of the Telecoms business in tuly 2020. Our assessment
of going concern is set out on page 31,

Financing

The Group established our Whole Business Securitisation ("“WBS') structure in February 2013, and since then we
have continued to refinance elements of our debt structure further extending our maturity profite.

In July, disposal proceeds from the sale of the Telecoms business were utilised to repay debt and swaps including
£550.0m of facilities drawn at the previous year end, £108.0m of senior term debt and £563.5m of senior bonds
and notes resuiting in a significant deleverage of the Group.

Standard and Poor's and Fiteh recanfirmed their rating of Argiva senior debt at BBB and Fitch and Moody's
confirmed the junior rating at B-/B1 respectively.

At 30 June 2021 the Group's debt finance® camprised:

< 1 year 1-2years 2-5 years >5 years Total
£m £fm £m £m £m

Facilities drawn - - - 26.1 26.1
Finance lease obligations 21.0 20.7 37.7 279 107.3
Senior term debt - - 262.0 - 262.0
Senior bonds and notes 56.7 50.1 168.6 488.7 764.1
Junior bonds - - 625.0 - 625.0
Sharehoider loan notes - - 2,148.1 - 2,148.1
Total 77.7 70.8 3,241.4 542.7 3,932.6

Included within the above is £3,351.1m of fixed rate debt and £581.5m of floating rate debt. All debt held at 30
June 2021 is sterling denominated. The Group halds interest rate swaps (including inflation-linked interest rate
swaps) to hedge our interest rate exposures. This hedging strategy is employed to ensure the certainty of future
interest cash flows. The Group does not apply hedge accounting to these swap arrangements.

3 Excluding unamortised debt issue costs and accrued interest
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Key Performance Indicators

The Group uses a cambination of financial and non-financial key performance indicaters ('KPis’) to measure

against our strategic ambitians.

See page 19 for further information on our strategic ambitions:

Financial KPIs

Hevenie

fm
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Definition — Revenue is presented as per the financiol statements, and
in nerordance with IFRS 15

Revenue has decreased 28.3% from the prior year for total revenue
(2021 £647.2m, 2020: £902 8m) and 5.2% on a continuing
operations basis (2021: £642.3m; 2020: £677.5m). Despite revenue
growth in the broadcast TV and radio distribution business due to
inflation linked contracts, the overall decrease for the year has been
driven by the expected reduction throughout the year due to the
successful completion of major works on the 700MHz Clearance
programme and lower pricing renewals on the main DTT multiplexes.
This has been partially offset by new revenues related to use of
broadcast sites for telecommunications equipment and the ramp up
of activity on water metering contracts won in the prior year mainly
due to the sale of devices.

EBITDA

fm

1oy 00 50
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Definition — EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure and refers to ‘earnings
before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation’ and includes add-
backs for certain items charged to operating profit that do not reflect
the underlying business perfarmance. See page 28 for its
reconciliation to operating profit.

Total £BITDA has reduced 36.0% and 15.1% from continuing
operations (2021: £332.4m; 2020: £391.6m). The reduction in the
year has been driven by the decrease in revenues explained above
particularly arcund the 700MHz clearance programme and the
product mix with revenue increases driven in lower margin areas. A
reduction in corporate costs due to a focus on cost management and
transformation including lower staff costs have partially cffset the
decrease.

Operatmg cast fow atter capta’ ard
frnancial nvesrmen:

frr

Lol RILY 3 a0 G0

NI 60 - o
[ Iyt 2020 2253 ROE)

Definition — Operating cash flow after capital investment activities
represents the cash generated after spending required to maintain or
expand its asset base. This is calculoted as the net cash flow from
operations minus the net cash flow from capital expenditure and
financial investment. See page 29 for its reconciliation to net cash
flow from operations.

Cash generated has decreased 16.3% from £373.6m to £312.6m_ This
has predominantly been driven by the decrease in operations
following the sale of the telecom business. The decrease has been
partly reduced through a reduction in capital expenditure principally
owing to lower expenditure on major capital programmes such as
the 700MHz Clearance programme following successful completion
of major works partially offset by an increase in expenditure related
to the digital transformation programme for the business.
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Non-fimancial KPis
700 MMz Cearance Programime

The major activities on the Clearance programme have successfully completed foliowing the completion of the last two
clearance events by August 2020

Utibties

The final network milestone for the Smart energy metering contract, BMax (99.5% network coverage), was achieved in
December 2020

Definition — Argiva strives to provide consistently high service fevels
. and look to manage ond monitor the total annual level of network
e S (A availability across both TV and radio infrustructure gs a percentage
across all muitiplexes

99.95% 99.99% Result - Through careful management Argiva has consistently been

99.99% 99.98% able to achieve excellent levels of network avaitability
99.99% 99.99%
o 99,99% 99.99%

Making Argiva a great place to work
Definition — The Group tokes part in the ‘Investors in People’
accreditation for which more than 16,000 UK busmesses take part.

é’ d Result — Argiva holds an Investor in People Gold award. This is the
o

highest level in the Investors in People Recognition available. The
Gold achievernent of the Gold award 1s an outstanding recognition
ol ) Goid reflecting the commitment and hard work put in by colieagues acrass
E Silver the business and commitment to our values, clear focus on individual

and team objectives and team objectives aligned with business goals
and focus on continuous improvement.

Argiva has also been awarded an Investors in People ‘Health and
Wellbeing Good Practice Award’ demonstrating our Investment in the
health and wellbeing of colleagues across the business.
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Corporate Responsibility

Doing business the right way and sustainably is vital to Argiva. Argiva endeavours to conduct its businessin a
way that benefits all our stakeholders including customers, suppliers, employees, shareholders and
communities in which we operates as well as creating a sustainable future for the business

Qur ethics, values and behaviours are weaved through every aspect of what we do.

Charity

Argiva continues to be a proud supporter of Cancer Research UK (CRUK) recognising them as our national
corporate charity. Activities are organised by Charity Champions across our sites with colleagues getting involved
in a variety of ways including:

- Participating in an Argiva organised event
- Matched funding if employees participate in any CRUK event
- Taking on a personal challenge

Since the partnership hegan in 2019, Argiva and our employees have raised over £60,000 for CRUK. Our
partnership also extends beyond just fundraising — it is also about ensuring our colleagues are equipped with
the support they may need should they, or their family, be affected by cancer.

Cur majar corporate sites also provide support to a range of chosen charities in their local communities. These
include arganisations supporting adults with learning difficulties, homeless people, veterans and local food
banks.

We also understand that supporting a charity can be a very personal decision, so our matched funding scheme
enables colleagues to fundraise for their chosen local and national charities, from Diabetes UK and the NSPCC
to local community projects, children’s clubs and sports teams.

Our colleagues are also able to provide support to & charity of their choosing through the ‘Give As You Earn’
scheme, working in partnership with the Charities Aid Foundation, for which we retzined our Bronze Award in
2021. This allows colleagues to get tax relief on donations and the amount provided to charities through this
scheme has reached aver £100,000 over the past three years.

People - living our purpose

We aim to create a workplace where people feel engaged, energised and respected, where they can do their
hest, and look after their personal wellbeing, both in and out of work.

Wellbeing

The Group has an ongoing commitment to the health and emotional wellbeing of our people. Argiva runs an
annual event focusing on both organisational and personal resilience, which includes wellbeing sessions and
training courses. We also have a network of mental health first-aiders, who are equipped to listen without
judgement, reassure and respond to colleagues, even in acrisis.

This activity is suppiemented by further focused activity aligned with national weeks around mental health and
wellness. As well as these specific activities, our colleagues have access to a wealth of support through our
Employee Assistance Programme and our partnership with Cancer Research UK.

Health and Safety

Health and safety of individuals is vital, whether in the office or repairing an antenna on a 1,000ft mast. We are
committed to complying with applicable health and safety legislation, and to continual improverment in achieving
a high standard of health, safety, and welfare in its operations and for atl those in the organisation and others
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who may be affected by its activities. The Group operates a robust integrated management system that is
certified to 15014001, 15045001, 1S090001 and 150270001 as weil as offering training programmes covering
specific skills and general awareness. We have been a driving force in developing the Mast and Tower Safety
Group, run our own accredited 10SH Working Safely training scheme for our engineers and we collaborate with
the union BECTU on our annual employee safety conference.

Diversity and Inclusion

Valuing diversity and being inclusive is key. Our diversity and inclusion programme ensures we continually focus
on what’s needed for everyone to feel included and able to perform. We have moved beyond building awareness
around unconscious bias and are now supporting colleagues to understand the difference between intent and
impact.

Our Diversity Ambassadors have been instrumental in encouraging and engaging other workplace communities.
We now have an active Women at Argiva network, a Warking Families group, and a Neurodiversity netwaork, so
we can listen, support and take opportunities to make lasting, tangible changes so our working practices are
evert more inclusive.

Environment

We continue to be aware of the impact our activities and our infrastructure may have on local communities. We
always strive to minimise the impact we make on sites across the country, especially at remote locations with
protected wildlife; and we work closely with planning authorities and local communities to find the best
acceptable solution for locations of masts and other infrastructure essential to keeping both rural and urban
communities connected.

Energy

Given the nature of the Group’s activities, Energy consumption js a key area of interest both economically and
environmentally. Our energy policy reflects the company’s commitments to improving energy efficiency by:

- Reducing energy consumption
- Investing in energy efficient technology; and
- Monitoring carbon emissions

We are always fooking at new and innovative ways of driving down our carbon footprint. Responsible
management of energy has a key role in minimising environmental impacts and is embedded within Argiva. We
investigate how emerging technologies and ingenious ways of working can help us and our customers become
environmentally friendly,

See page 59 in the Directors report for details on our annual emissions.
Waste Management

The nature of our business means that we also have certain responsibilities particular to our industry. For
example, as new technologies emerge and legacy equipment is replaced, we look for the most environmentally
friendly ways to dispose of redundant hardware. We also consider the environmental risk of every investment
made.

Information Security

Due to the critical importance of gur sites and systems to the Group, our customers and, in some cases, as Critical
National Infrastructure, we take information security very seriously.

We hold certification to ISO/IEC 27001:2013. 1SQ27001 is an internationally recognised specification for an
information security management system {ISMS), a framework of policies and procedures that includes all legal,
physical and technica! controls involved in an organisation’s infarmation risk management processes. This allows
us to compete for new business which requires us to demonstrate the robustness of our security controls
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Through independent review and accreditation, supported by internal monthly audits, we continue to
confidently demonstrate our commitment to security and secure working practices. We have held this
certification since 2013 and recertify every three years with recertification iast given in May 2020.

We also hold Cyber Essentials certification. Cyber Essentials is a government-hacked, ndustry-supported
scheme to help arganisations guard against the mast commaon cyber threats and demonstrate their commitment
to security. We have held this certification since 2016 and recertify annually.

Employees

The average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was 1,528 (2020: 1,864). Argiva
recognises the significant contribution of our employees and makes every effort to create a rewarding and
engaging work environment.

Our policy is to provide equal opportunities for all emptoyees, irrespective of race, nationality, gender, sexual
orientation, marital status, religion or political beliefs, disability or age. Like many engineering-based businesses
we recognise that Argiva has a higher proportion of men than women and we are working to address this with
the Employers Network for Equality and Inclusion through our diversity and inclusion programme.

The table below provides a breakdown of the gender of Directors and employees as at 30 June 2021:

S . . . : CRES -, -
W oee . - Lt - B - Foe L7 e W .

1/8% 11/92%

Board of Directors

Executive Committee 1/14% 6/86%
Group Employees 328 /21% 1,200 / 79%

The Group continues to address training and development requirements for employees at all levels within the
organisation. The Board also reviews future management requirements and succession plans on an on-going
hasis.

The Argiva Employee Board {"AEB’) has continued throughout the year. The AEB is a democratically elected
Board that acts as a voice for employees across Argiva and provides a clear and direct link between the Group’s
employees and the Executive Committee. The AEB continues to meet on a monthly basis to discuss key matters
such as performance management, or efficiencies and process to develop responsive action plans. Furthermore,
the AEB (as well as the Executive Committee} interacts with representatives of BECTU (the Breadcasting,
Entertainment, Cinematograph and Theatre Union) regarding empioyee matters.

The Group’s employee forums provide an effective channel for communication and collective censultation
across the Group. They play an important role in enabling empioyees to help the Group manage change
effectively. The goals of each forum are to act as the formal consultative body for its part of the business within
Argiva, provide a voice to management on employee issues, initiate and support social activities, and promote
consultation and sharing information.

Significant emphasis is placed on employee communication. The Group intranet, ‘The Hub’, makes information
available to employees on all matters including performance, growth, and issues affecting the industry. The
embedded values “Ingenious, Straightforward, and Collaborative”, continue to form the fundamental basis of
all Argiva business conduct and communication.

Argiva wants all our employees to benefit from our success and growth as a business. The annual bonus scheme
recognises the importance of high performance and is designed to reward employees for achieving targets and
continuous improvement in overall perfarmance, in ling with our values and strategy. The scheme takes into
account the targets that have been set by the Group. The Group must achieve a minimum EBITDA and operating
cash performance before a bonus becames payable which is then calculated based on these financial KPIs. The
bonus payment for the 2021 financial year is expected to be made in October 2021. In addition, certain members
of our senior management participate in a long-term incentive plan which is typically 3 years in duration and is
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designed to recognise the value of strategic initiatives being undertaken by the Group during the longer-term,
As with the annual bonus scheme, the Group must achieve a minimum threshold of financial performance before
a bonus becomes payable under the long-term incentive plan which is then calculated based upon the 3-year
Group financial KPls of EBITDA and operating cash performance. All such arrangements are cash-based incentive
schemes which operate against documented performance targets and are reviewed at least annually by the
Remuneration Committee (which comprises members of the Board of Directors).

Gender Pay Gap

The fuli annuai gender pay gap report is availabie on the company website. The [atest report has shown a mixed
picture for the gender pay gap for the reporting period with an improvement in the main but an increase in the
median pay gap and includes details on why we have a pay gap, the reasons for the increase in the year and the
actions we are taking to address the issue.

Modern Slavery Act

Argiva is committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part of our business. The supplier Code of Conduct reflects the commitment to acting ethically and with
integrity in all business relationships and to implement and enforce effective systems and controls to ensure
slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere in our supply chains. The full statement is included
on page 40 and is also available on the company website at www.argiva.cam.

Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption

In conjunction with the UK Bribery Act 2010, the Group has adopted a Code of Conduct for employees which
incorporates all its anti-corruption policies and procedures. The policies apply to alf Argiva empioyees employed
on both a permanent and temporary basis. The Code of Conduct also sets out the policies and procedures on
the giving and receiving of gifts and hospitality.

Taxation

The Group’s approach to tax is to ensure compliance with all legal and statutory obligations. Argiva is committed
to maintaining a transparent and constructive working relationship with HM Revenue & Customs and with local
tax authorities in the jurisdictions in which we operate. The total contribution to UK tax receipts including
business rates and N| paid by both Argiva and employees, totalled £65.4m far the financial year (2020: £92.6m).

The Argiva Group is a primarily UK based infrastructure group. There are some trading operations outside of the
UK, however these generate less than 1% of operating profit and there are no tax planning activities taken which
seek to reduce the Group’s UK profits or revenues by transferring revenue or profit out of the UK. The Group’s
small overseas trading entities deal directly with customers in their area of residence and fulfil their tax
requirements in the local jurisdictions.

This report was approved by the Board on XX September 2021 and sighed on its behalf by:

-

Mike Parton

21 September 2021
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Corporate Governhance Statement

The Companies {Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations 2018 {the “Regulations”), requires companies that meet
certain thresholds to report on the Directors’ application of their section 172 duty to promote the success of the
Company, as set out in the Campanies Act 2006, along with stakeholder and employee engagement.

Section 172 Statement

The Companies Act 2006 sets out a set of general duties owed by directors to a company, including a list of
matters to which directors must have regard, which are set out in 5.172(1){a) to (f). During FY¥21, in continuing
to exercise their duties, the Directors have had regard for these matters, as well as other factors, in considering
proposais from the Executive Committee and continuing to govern the Company on behalf of our shareholders.

Consequencé of any decision in - Stratégic overview 19-20

the long-term
Interests of emplaoyees Employee Engagement 39
People — living our purpose 34 (Corporate Responsibility)
Employees 36
Fostering relationship with Stakeholder Engagement Below
suppliers, customers and others Business Update 21-25
Impact of operations on the Environment 35
cammunity and the environment Energy Consumption and Waste 35
management
Charity 34
Maintaining high standard of Governance 43-47
business conduct Health & Safety 34

Modern Slavery Act, Anti-Bribery 41

& Corruption

Stakeholder Engagement Below
Accountability 56

Acting fairly between members

Stakeholder Engagement Statement

Throughout the year, the Beard has continued to ensure engagement with relevant stakehofders both in day
to day business and as part of key developments this year such as COVID-19. Examples of the way in which this
engagement has taken place are set out in the table below.

P : 5
H d

Please see our Employee Engagement Statement below and Corporate
Responsibility statement (pages 34-37) for full details

We have good relationships with representatives in all relevant regulatory
bodies and engage regularly with Ofcom; the Department for Culture, Media
and Sport (DCMS); the Department for Business £nterprise and Industrial
Strategy (BEIS), as well as monitoring relevant developments with Ofwat and
Ofgem as regulators of customers of our Utilities business, We participate in
consuitations and consult with government departments and regulators when
setting strategy and making decisions that affect industry generally; during the
2021 financial year this has included working closely with regulators during the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Employees

Regulatory Bodies

Investors Quarterly reports to investors are published on our website and available to all;
an annual investor call is held, in which we review our annual results and invite
questions from investors. We worked closely with our investors in relation to
the sate of our Telecoms business to secure their ongoing positions.

Customers Our relationships with our customers are very important to us, and we maintain

regular contact through account managers; Executive Committee members; and
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where appropriate our Chairman. As part of COVID-19 we have sought to
understand and support customers who have been affected and ensure
continued delivery of services.

Suppliers Our Procurement team oversees supplier relationship management, with a

category management structure so that employees have relevant expertise for
each supplier. We work closely to ensure positive relationships, seeking to agree
fair terms and conditions and ensure timely payment, through adherence to and
reporting on the Prompt Payment Code.

Shareholders Shareholder Representatives on the Board report back to shareholders on the

pusiness and take their interests into account when making decisions, while
operating in accordance with their Companies Act duties. The Group's corporate
governance specifies a number of categories of decision which are Shareholder
Reserved Matters, ensuring that the decisions affecting shareholders are subject
to necessary regulations of all shareholders. This governance was followed
when agreeing and implementing the sale of the Telecoms business and
associated investment decisions.

Stakeholders As part of our infrastructure projects, we engage with planning authorities and

local communities to foster positive relationships. Araiva’s charitable
engagement also seeks to support communities Jocal to the areas in which it
operates.

Employee Engagement Statement

i

information

Regular all company updates are provided to all employees via Argiva’s Hub {intranet) and email
updates; Management have conducted company-wide live broadcasts through the year to update
employees on performance, strategy and other key developments; with opportunities for employees
to ask guestions in real time,

Consultation

Arqgiva has active union representations through the Broadcasting Entertainment Communications and
Theatre Union (BECTU); strategic decisions which may affect employees {including business change;
pay; and terms and conditions) are discussed with BECTI representatives in advance of action being
taken. Similar engagement also takes place with the Argiva Employee Board {AEB), which is elected by
employees, and their feedback and views are taken into account when making decisions affecting the
workforce, (for example in setting timescales and the content of communications).

fnvolvement

Employees participate in annual bonus schemes which are based upon performance of the business
throughout the year, encouraging employees to contribute to the success of the business. The Group’s
values of Ingenious and Collaborative encourage new ideas and fostering strong relationships across
the arganisation, supporting overall performance of the business.

Commaon Awareness

Financial and economic factors affecting the business are described to employees throughout the year
during Management broadcasts; regular email communications with business updates and through the
Argiva Hub.
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Modern Slavery Act: Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement

Overarching Statement
This statement sets out the steps we are implementing to combat slavery and human trafficking. We remain
committed to further improving our practices in the future to combat slavery and human trafficking.

Organisation’s Structure

We are a communicatians infrastructure and media services provider, operating at the heart of the broadcast
and sateliite markets. We're at the forefront of network sofutions and services in the digital world. We provide
much of the infrastructure hehind television, radio and satellite communications in the UK and have a presence
in Ireland, mainland Europe, Asia and the USA.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2021, Argiva Limited and its subsidiaries, Argiva Muxco Limited and
Argiva Smart Metering Limited were part of the Argiva Group with head offices in the UK and over 1,300
employees. We operate in the UK, Europe, Asia and the USA.

Argiva Limited (including its subsidiaries), Argiva Muxco Limited and Argiva Smart Metering Limited each have
an annual turnover of in excess of £36 million.

Qur Supply Chains

The Argiva Procurement team works in partnership with our suppliers, ensuring we meet our internal customer
needs. The Argiva values of Ingenious, Straightforward and Collaborative are core to how we interact with
suppliers whether a high-volume preferred supplier or one-time only supplier.

We have an exceptionally diverse range of services and goods that are required by the business and sourced by
our Procurement team including:

»  Transmission — Argiva has numerous transmission sites throughout the UK;

»  Construction — Argiva undertakes a broad range of construction activities from small changes to the
construction of new transmission towers;

« Maintenance & Repairs;

e IT software and managed services;

« Satellite Capacity; and

= Corporate facilities (including corporate sites, stationery, recruitment, legal and professional fees).

Our Policies on Slavery and Human Trafficking

We are committed to ensuring that there is no modern slavery or human trafficking in our supply chains or in
any part our business. Suppliers are required to camply with our Supplier Code of Conduct, which reflects our
commitment to acting ethically and with integrity in all our business relationships and to implementing and
enfarcing effective systems and controls to ensure slavery and human trafficking is not taking place anywhere
in our supply chains.

Due Diligence Process for Slavery and Human Trafficking
As part of our initiative to identify and mitigate risk we:
s Aimn to identify and assess potential risk areas in our own business and our supply chains;
»  Tryto mitigate the risk of slavery and human trafficking occurring in our business and aur supply chains;
+« Monitor potential risk areas in our own business and our supply chains;
»  Where possible we huild long standing retationships with suppliers and make clear our expectations of
their business behaviour;
s Expect our suppliers to comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and have their own suitable anti-
slavery and human trafficking policies and processes; and
s Encourage the reporting of concerns and support the protection of whistleblowers.
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Supplier Adherence to our Values
We have zero tolerance to slavery and hurmnan trafficking. We expect all those in our supply chain to comply with
those values and our Supplier Code of Conduct.

Our Procurement team, reporting into our CFO, is responsible for promoting and ensuring compliance with the
Modern Slavery Act 2015 as part of our supplier relationships.

Training

To ensure a high level of understanding of the risks of modern slavery and human trafficking in cur supply chains
and our business, all Directors and members of the Executive Committee have been briefed on the subject and
we continue to assess training needs for all relevant members or our staff.

Our Effectiveness in combating Slavery and Human Trafficking
We will use the following key performance indicators (KPIs) to measure how effective we have been to ensure
that slavery and human trafficking is not taking place in any part of our business or supply chains:
e Use of robust supplier selection process including supplier questionnaires and compliance with Argiva's
Supplier Code of Conduct; and
e Use of our payroll systems to ensure that purchase orders and payments to suppliers are limited to
those who camply with our standards.

Steps taken during the financial year to 30 june 2021
In the past financial year, we have taken the following steps to ensure that slavery and human trafficking is not
taking place in our supply chains, and in any part of our own business:

a) We have continued to implement a qualification process for all of our suppliers, using our e-
procurement system. This process includes background checks and either (a) confirmation of
acceptance af the Argiva Supplier Code of Conduct {which covers madern slavery and human
trafficking); or {b} demonstration that the Supplier has its own eguivalent policies covering modern
slavery and human trafficking. Purchase Orders cannot be placed with new suppliers before the
confirmation has been given;

b} The migration to a new version of Oracle financial systems has presented an opportunity to further
reduce our number of trading suppliers, and we are working to a pool of approximately 600 suppliers
on go-live of the upgraded systems (this figure has reduced from >2,300in 2018);

¢}  We have introduced a new e-learning system for colleagues, using LinkedIn Learning, which includes
content on modern slavery;

d) We have refreshed our “Speak Up” reperting website and telephone line to enable people to notify
concerns. These are overseen by the Internal Audit function and regular updates given to the Group’s
Audit & Risk Committee.

"

Statement

This statement is made pursuant to section 54(1) of the Madern Slavery Act 2015 and constitutes Argiva Limited,
Argiva Muxco Limited and Argiva Smart Metering Limited’s slavery and human trafficking statement for the
financial year ending 30 June 2021.

Nate: The signed statement is available on the Company website at www.argiva.com
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Board of Directors and Executive Committee

Ownership

The Company is pwned by a consortium of shareholders comprising Canada Pension Plan Investment Board
(48%), Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund I {25%), plus other Macqguarie managed fund (1.5%), Health
Super Investments (5.5%), IFM Global Infrastructure Fund (14.8%) and Motor Trades Association of Australia
(5.2%). There is no ultimate controfiing party of the Company, as defined by [AS 24 ‘Related parties’.

In accaordance with |AS 24, there are two investor companies which are related parties with the Group, by virtue
of significant shareholding in the Group:

¢ Frequency Infrastructure Communications Assets Limited {'FICAL’) (48%), a company controlled by
Canada Pension Plan investment Board. The Canada Pensian Plan Investment Board is a professional
investment management organisation in Toronto which invest the asset of the Canada Pension plan.
The Canada Pension Plan Investment Board was incorporated as a federal Crown corporation by an Act
of Parliament in December 1997.

*  Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund I ('MEIF I’} {25%), an investment fund managed by the
Macquarie Group. Macqguarie European Infrastructure Fund Il is a wholesale investment fund focusing
on investments in high-quality infrastructure businesses across Europe. Macquarie Group Limited is
listed in Australia {ASX:MQG ADR;MQBKY).

Arqiva Board of Directors

The Group’s Board of Directors is comprised of ten Directors representing our sharehalder consartium as well
as two members of the Executive Committee, The following Board members were in office during the year and
up to the date of the signing of the annual report and financial statements.

Board Committee Membership

A — Audit and Risk Committee

G - Governance and Nomination Committee
R - Remuneration Committee

O — Operational Resilience

Bold — Committee Chair

Mike Parton, Chairman and Governance and Nomination Committee Chair

Mike brings a wealth of experience from his background in the telecoms and technology
industry. Mike started his career as a Chartered Management Accauntant, working for &
number of UK technology companies including $iCL, GEC, STC and Marconi, Mike has held
the roles of CEP of Marconi plc. Chairman of Damovo Group and Chairman of Tele2 AB.

In addition to his role at Argiva, Mike is currently also Chairman of TDC Group and a trustee
of a young people’s charity, Grit.

A G R

43



Arqiva Group Limited (05254001}
Annuat Report and Financial Statements — Year Ended 30 June 2021

Paul Donovan, Chief Executive Officer

Prior to his appointment to Chief Executive Officer, Paul acted as a non-executive director
on the Argiva Board.

Paul has over 20 years’ experience in senior executive roles across the technology, media
and telecommunications sectors. Between 2014 and 2016 Paul led the transformation of
Europe’s leading cinema operator, Odeon and UCI Cinemas Group, ahead of its successful
sale to AMC Theatres. Paul’s leadership led to innovations in pricing, digital marketing and
guest experience which laid the foundations for improvements in business performance
and public perception.

Prior to this Paul was CEO of Irish Telecoms Group eir. His background also includes senior
executive appointments with a number of significant global arganisations including
vodafone, Cable & Wireless, One20ne and Optus as well as senior commercial roles at BT,
Apple Computers, Coca-Cola and Schweppes Beverages and Mars inc.

Sean West, Chief Financial Officer

Sean was appointed Chief Financial Officer in September 2019, having joined Argiva in
2015 as Director of Treasury and Corporate Finance and appointed Interim Chief
Financial Officer in May 2019,

Sean has a background in all areas of corporate finance and financing, and as Director
of Treasury and Corporate Finance was responsible for all aspects of the Group’s capital
structure,

Prior to joining Argiva, Sean held senior corporate finance and treasury positions at the
Immediate Capital Group {ICG) and LandSec and brings a wealth of experience across a
range of industries and financial markets.

Appointed by IFM Investors and Motor Trades Association of Australia (joint appointment)

Sally Davis, Director and Remuneration Committee Chair

With over 30 years in the TMT sector Sally has held a number of senior product,
strategy and chief executive roles including being a former Chief Executive of BT
Whalesale, one of four operating divisions of BT. Prior to this, Sally had an early
product management career at Mercury Communications before becoming a director
at NYNEX during its merger with Bell Atlantic to become Verizon.

Sally is also a Non-Executive Director on the Board of Telenor and is Chairman of
Leonard Cheshire.
R

Appointed by Frequency Infrastructure Communications Assets Limited

Mike Darcey, Director and Operational Resilience Chair

Mike has over 25 years’ experience in the technology, media and telecemmunications
industry with numerous positions held ranging from CEQ of News International to COO
of British Sky Broadcasting Group. He has also provided strategic advisory services to a
range of clients in the media industry.

Mike has served or is currently serving on Boards including Dennis Publishing (UK) Ltd
{Chairman), M247 (Chairman), Home Retail Group (Senior Independent Director) and
Sky New Zealand (Director). He is also Chairman of British Gymnastics and Senior
Expert Advisor to MTM Consulting.

0 G
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Batiste Ogier, Director

Batiste is a Senior Principal in the Portfotio Value Creation at CPP Investments. He has
responsibility for oversight of CPP investments’ global Infrastructure and Power &
Renewables portfolios including helping establish each investment’'s asset
managerment priorities. In his role, Batiste is also a Director on the Board of Renewable
Power Capital, a renewable energy investment platform he helped found in 2020 and
is Board representative for CPP Investments at Anglian Water. Prior to joining CPP
Investments, he was a Director in the Infrastructure team at First State Investments,
during which time he was a member of the Supervisory Board of the Coriance Group
and a Board representative for FSI at Anglian Water.

Neil King, Director

Neil runs the European infrastructure business at CPP investment Board. He has over
twenty-five years of experience in the infrastructure market, including ten years at 3i
as a founding partner in its infrastructure investment business before joining CPPIB in
2015.

Neil is also a Non-Executive director at Interparking S.A., a European car parking
business which is in CPPIB’s infrastructure investment portfolio.
G R

Peter Adams, Director {alternate)
Peter is a Principal in the Infrastructure group at CPP Investment Board, based in
London.

Prior to joining CPP investment Board in September 2010, Peter was with the Boston
Consulting Group, where he advised clients in the U5, Canada and Europe on
strategy and operations.

Appointed by Macquarie European Infrastructure Fund Il

Nathan Luckey
Nathan was reappointed to the Board on 1 July 2021.

Nathan is a Senior Managing Director in Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets
{MIRA), and leads MIRA’s Digital Infrastructure team in Europe. Nathan holds a
number of non-executive directorship roies for companies within MIRA's
investment portfolio. He is a qualified Mechanical Engineer, with expertise across
the telecommunications, media, transportation and utilities sectors.

Mark Braithwaite, Director

Mark is a Senior Managing Director in Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets.
Mark was previously Chief Financial Officer of Thames Water, the UK's largest water
and wastewater services company. Prior to joining Thames Water, Mark was
finance Director of the customer and energy divisions at EDF Energy plc, and before
that held a number of senior Finance positions at Seboard plc.

Mark has other non-executive directorship roles for companies within MIRA’s
investment portfolio and is also a trustee of Leadership through Sport & Business, &
UK social mobility and employability charity.

A G R
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Appointed by IFM Investors

Christian Seymour, Director

Christian is Head of Infrastructure at iIFM Global Infrastructure Fund, responsible for
the business expansion in Europe and oversight of IFM’s existing European asset
portfolio, of which Codan Trust is an investment vehicle.

A G R o]

Max Fieguth, Director (alternate)

Max is responsible for asset management of existing investments for IFM Global
Infrastructure Fund, as well as supporting the execution of infrastructure
transactions. Prior to joining IFM Investors, Max worked as a Consuitant in the
Operations Practice at McKinsey and prior to that at Bechtel on a number of
infrastructure projects. He halds a Masters in Mechanical Engineering from Imperial
College London, an MBA from INSEAD anc is a Chartered Engineer with the Institution
of Mechanical Engineers in the UK.

Independent Board Advisor

Frank Dangeard, Independent Board Advisor and Audit and Risk Committee Chair

Frank Dangeard resigned as a Directar on 1 July 2021. He still attends Board and Audit
and Risk Committee meetings as an Independent advisor to the Board,

In the telecom, media and technology sector, Frank has held various positions at
Thomson S.A., including Chairman & CEO, and was Deputy CEO of France Telecom.
He served on the boards of SonaeCom and Orange, and was Deputy Chairman of
Telenor. He is currently of NortonLifeLock {ex-Symantec, US} and is on the board of
HIS {Cayman). In the financial sector, he was a Managing Director of SG Warburg and
Chairman of SG Warburg France. He served on the boards of Crédit Agricole CIB and
Home Credit. He is currently on the board of NatWest Group (UK), and Chairman of
NatWest Markets (UK). Frank also held board positions at EDF, RPX and various listed
and non-listed companies in Europe, the US, India and the Middle-East.

A O
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Executive Committee

(also includes the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer on pages 44)

Shuja Kahn Vivian Leinster Alex Pannel
Chief Commercial Chief People Executive Director, Commercial
Officer Officer Broadcast and Utilities
- Joined Argiva in January 2020 - loined Argiva in June 2020 - loined Arqgiva in 2012,
as Chief Operating Officer, - Extensive experience in appainted to the Executive
moving to Chief Commercial people, arganisation and Committee in 2018 within
Officer role in luly 2020. cultural changes. the Satellite and Media
- 20 years in leadership roles - Previous positions including business.
within telecoms, media and Chief People Officer at MS - Previously Director in BT
broadcasting. Most recently Amlin and Bupa UK. Wholesale.
Chief Commercial Officer at - Other orevious positions at
Cable and Wireless Concert Communications.

- Other senior positions at
Liberty Global.

Adrian Twyning Clive White
Chief of Chief Technology and
Operations Transformation Officer
- Joined Argiva in March 2021 - loined Argiva in Apri! 2018.
with experience in energy, - Previous transformation
retail, health construction and positions at RSA, Lloyds
professional services. Banking Group, Accenture,
- Previously Director of ATR&T Global Network and
Transformation at Dixons BSkyB.
Carphone

- Other senior pasitions at
British Gas and Brighton and
Sussex Hospitals NHS Trust
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Argiva’s approach to risk management is as follows:

- Argiva recognises that the effective management of risk is essential to achieve our business objectives

- Arqgiva adopts an Enterprise Risk Management ("ERM’} approach, which is recognised as ‘best
practice’ for top performing companies

- Managing risk is a core responsibility of management at all levels and is a key component of
governance and compliance

- Argiva aims to embed risk management principles into the culture of the organisation

Enterprise wide management of risk is important for Argiva to meet our corparate objectives and for us to
protect future competitive advantage. The strategic importance of risk management is recognised by top
performing companies and is an important part of good corperate governance, Argiva subscribes to the
Enterprise Risk Management approach te managing our risk profile.

Argiva has adopted 15031000 as its Enterprise Risk Management standard and ISO Guide 73 terminology.
Argiva has also adopted the ISO 27000 series for Information Security including 1ISOQ/IEC 27005 for Security Risk
Management which operates within the Argiva ERM Framewaork. Our statements and principles are linked to
our process thraugh our risk management framework.

£
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The Executive Committee has responsibility for maintaining and updating their line of business risk register
which includes utilising the standardised approach to risk assessment and risk monitoring. The Group’s
centralised Internal Audit and Risk function provides training and support ta ensure risks are captured
effectively and on a timely basis. The Audit and Risk function works with the Chief Executive Officer to review
and consolidate the most significant business risks into a corporate risk register for serutiny at quarterly
Executive Committee and Audit and Risk Committee meetings. The Executive Committee takes
recommendations for ensuring the risk management framework remains effective going forward.

Business Management: Senior Executive Management:

Quarterly review of the corporate
risk register ta incude review of
sk management policies, setting
of risk appetite, monitoting
compliance and reporting of
significant risks to the Board of
Directors.

Audit and Risk function / Audit
committee:
Independent business assurance
provided over the effectiveness
of the Group's system of internal
controts and processes, and
the effectiveness of the risk
management framewark,

First defence is the day 1o day
controls and processes put in place
by managernent to identify risks

and develop mitigating actions.

Management has identified the following risks as the most significant business risks affecting the Group,
presented together with identified mitigating actions.

K
A

The COVID 13 health
pandemic is a risk to
demand and operational
capabilities

Argiva maintains regular
dialogue with customers and
other stakeholders with regard
to impact of the pandemic.

Management continue to review
the working capital and liquidity
facilities available to the Group.
Argiva maintains an operational
Resilience team who monitor
latest restrictions and guidelines
from the Government.

Business Continuity Plans are
established for each key site and
business area.

Discounts to local commercial
radio customers have been
extended during the year to
continue to suppart these
customers through the COVID-19
pandemic.

Financial liquidity is continually
monitored and reviewed with
regard to available facilities for
the Group. Post year end in July
2021, the Group has renegotiated
our available facilities with a new
£100.0m facility available unti!
2025.

Business Continuity Plans have
continued to be enacted with sites
adhering to government COVID
secure guidelines. Alternative
working arrangements and
technology to support these
arrangements have been enacted
to enable the continued
provisions of the Group’s services
and safe working conditions for
employees,
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Bad publicity damages
Argiva’s reputation and
customer and business
partner confidence and its
ability to do business as a
result of:
- A major event or
incident impacting ours
services;
Untimely delivery on
major projects;
Repeated unexpected
service outages,;
Security breach or cyher
attack on networks; or
- Major network or
equipment failure ar
obsolescence or inability
to configure ta comply
with information security
standards

'

Risk of incident causing
death or serious injury
during site works or
engingering.

Risk of mental health
issues as a result of
significant organisational
changes

Developments in
alternative broadcast
technologies, which
campete against the DTT
transmission business; or
the evolution of DAB
against Arqiva’s existing
analogue radio
transmission business.
Technical refresh in
machine-to-machine
markets impacting
potential obsolescence of
legacy systems.

Argiva carefully engages with our
customers to ensure that project
milestones are carefully
managed and management
regularly reviews the pragress of
all projects.

Through continuous
rmeasurement of operational KPls
and addressing shortfalls in
performance through process
excellence the risk around
service reliability is carefully
managen

The Group has in place a crisis
management plan for public
relations and external
communications to provide
support should thera be any
maijor events. This is regularly
monitored and reviewed.
Cyber-attacks and trends in this
area are continually monitored.

The Group continues to invest in
our infrastructure.

Training and rescue skills courses
are required on an annual basis
for field employees, and rescue
kits are provided.

Argiva maintains and regularly
reviews our policy on workplace
safety and site security.

DTT retains the largest share of
broadcast transmission in the
UK, and IPTV remains
constrained by limitad high
speed broadband uptake and
variable reliability leveis. In
addition, Argiva has mitigated
some of this risk by investing in
YouView TV Limited, a joint
venture formed to develop and
promote the DTT platform
together with involvementin
Freeview Play.

Argiva has continued to achieve
our target result for ‘network
availability’, achieving over 99%.

The Group has completed the
700MHz programme during the
year ahead of schedule.

The Group maintains [S027001
certification regarding information
security and holds periodic
reviews of the sccurity
environment and training to
employees.

The Business Continuity Group
continues to meet regularly and
will test and roll out the Disaster
Recovery Plan.

There has been continued capital
expenditure in the year to
improve infrastructure.

The Group has continued with our
digital transformation programme
with Finance transformation and
implementation of a new Oracle
ERP system and 1T service portal
during the year.

Argiva has maintained compliance
with OHSAS18001 regarding
safety management.

Mental health and wellness
continue to be of focus. Argiva
runs annual events focusing on
personal resilience including
wellbeing sessions and training
courses. The Group also has a
network of mental health first
aiders across the organisation.

Argiva remains in dialogue with
relevant stakeholders for the
review into timeframes for full
analogue switchover. Upgrades to
our DAB network in recent years
mean Argiva continues tobein a
strong position to support future
switchover.

The new strategic priorities of the
Group for the next 10 years put a
focus on the sustainable future of
the business including the

development of solutions for new
and emerging sectors to make the
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Change in government
plans, policy or priorities
could lead to unforeseen
changes in scope on major
engineering programmes
and licencing.

Information, networks and
systems infrastructure may
be subjected to cyber
security threats leading to
aloss or corruption of
data, penalties and
impacting the operational
capacity of Arqiva.

Critical transmission
struetures or IT
infrastructure supporting
key operational processes
could fail teading to
operational outages.

The scale and complexity
of Argiva's majar
programmes bear an
inherent risk of unforeseen
delays through the supply
chain and therefare
challenges to delivery.

Argiva maintains regular
dialogue with our stakeholders
to ensure the delivery of our
programmes are efficient, timely
and to specification. Where
specification changes occur,
Argiva provides a detailed
assessment of the potential costs
of the scope change and seeks an
informed recovery of these costs
through mechanisms in qur
contracts.

Argiva’'s assets and operations
remain predominantly in the UK
and therefore our business has
minimal exposure to the
changing relationships with
international markets.
Additionally, we expect the
infrastructure Argiva provides to
continue to be demanded and
that these services evolve as
markets and consumer tastes
evolve,

The Group maintains an
150270001 certification
regarding information security,
which includes Cloud Security
Services. Employee training on
information security is
mandatory and quarterly reviews
are undertaken by external
consultants to examine the
robustness of the security
envirpnment.

Argiva ensures data is regularly
backed up and Business
Continuity Plans have been
established for each key site and
each business area. A Business
Recovery Waorking Group meets
regularly to stress test these
plans and continually review the
Group'’s approach to disaster
recovery angd operational
resilience.

Argiva maintains a robust
aversight of the delivery of our
majar programmes. This includes
identifying the key personnel and
rasources required for defivery
and working closely with its
suppliers and customers to

most of our infrastructure and
expertise.

Argiva has successfully agreed
scope and ¢hange requests on our
smart energy metering
programme with our custemer
demonstrating the customer’s
continued focus on network roll
out.

Argiva has continued engagement
with Ofcom regarding licensing
arrangements.

Debt markets have continued to
be monitored for accessibility and
open dialogue maintained with
ratings agencies. Evolving
commercial negotiations are
closely monitored.

Argiva has implemented detection
and prevention sotutions on
networks.

Argiva has continued to pass our
quarterly security reviews and has
consequently retained 1SO
certification.

Communication and training have
been maintained with employees
to ensure awareness of potential

cyber security threats.

Site inspections are completed
with a focus on older sites and
structural maintenance plans have
been implemented.

Business Continuity Plans have
been enacted through the COVID-
19 pandemic with keyworks on
sites able to continue the
seamless delivery of aur
operational services whilst
adhering to COVID secure
workplace guidelines.

Argiva has completed the 700MHz
Clearance programme during the
year in line with contractual
milestones,

The Group’s smart metering

communication network in the
North of England and Scotland
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Customer relationships
operations and project

. delivery could be damaged
if there were significant
loss of people with critical
skills and knowledge
unique to Argiva’s
competitive position.

ensure that these requirements
are sufficiently available,

Argiva recognises the
importance of our people and
seeks to make Argiva a
rewarding and enjoyable place to
work. The Group aperates a
competitive annual bonus plan
for alt employees and a long-
term incentive plan for our
leadership team. Additionally,
the Group operates formal
retention and succession
planning in knowledge-critical
areas of the business.

pages 61-62.

now covers 99.5% of premises.
Argiva continues to support the
DCC on the meter roll out
programme.

Argiva has continued to focus on
supporting individuals with
increased support and training for
new managers and emerging
talent.

Regular meetings are held to
identify critical issues and ensure
timely intervention. Retention
plans have continued to be
implemented for key individuals
particularly through significant
organisational changes that have
taken place across the workforce
in the year.

Details of the financial risks and details of mitigating factors are set out in the Directors’ report on

52



Arqiva Group Limited (05254001)
Annual Report and Financial Staterments — Year Ended 30 June 2021

Directors’ Report

The Directors of Argiva Group Limited ('AGL’), registered company number 05254001, (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”} submit the annual report and audited consolidated financial statements (“the
financial statements”} in respect of the year ended 30 June 2021.

The Company is a holding company with an investment in a group of operating companies, financing companies
and other holding companies.

The Directors’ report for the Company is set aut on page 130.

Wates Corporate Governance Statement

For the year ended 30 June 2021, under The Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting} Regulations 2018, Argiva has
applied the Wates Corporate Governance Principles for Large Private Companies (as published by the Financial
Reporting Courcil (FRC} in December 2018 and available on the FRC website].

Companies are able to adopt the Wates principles as an appropriate framework when making a disclosure
regarding corporate governance arrangements. We have adopted the disclosure in our 2021 Annual Report and
Financial Statements and we set out below how the principles have been applied over the past year.

PRINCIPLE ONE - PURPOSE AND LEADERSHIP -~ An offective bowen promiotes the poioose of u compnny, and

Eriantre s TAUT s varees, steafedy and cuiture aagn with toal putpose

Purpose/focus and activities during the year.

The divestment of the Groun’s Telecoms business was successfully completed in early July 2020. Subsequently,
the focus of the Board and Executive Committee during the year has been to lead Argiva through an uncertain
Covid 19 period and to re-set the business’ purpose with a particular emphasis on its core breadcast, media
networks and utilities businesses and its customers. The following items were the key areas of focus during the
year:

Item Summary
Headline purpose and The development of a new and updated purpose for Argiva — which is “Enabling a
strategy matters switched-on world to flow” - and also the Vision 2031 work which has brought our

purpose, our vision and our strategy together has been the focus for building a
sustainable future for Argiva. The Board has overseen these matters alongside the
development and adoption of a detailed and robust long-term plan for the business
with appropriate cost and investment assumptions which now underpin the
business. This was the first long-term plan for the ‘new’ business, following the
divestment of the Telecoms business to Cell'nex which was completed in July 2020.
Capital structure Following the divestment of the Telecoms business, the Board has overseen a
restructuring of its capital structure through the repayment of a significant portion
of its external debt and also the rationalisation of its derivatives positions
associated with that debt. Anindicative credit upgrade was confirmed by the rating
agencies at the end of the year.

Customers Argiva is a smaller and less complex business post the Telecoms divestment, and
the Board has sought to ensure senior engagement with key customers and
stakeholders to cement working relationships, share Argiva’s new purpase and to
open up further npportunities for collaboration.

In addition, a significant customer engagement survey was carried out in May 2021.
This pravided valuable insights in to Argiva's performance, what it needs to do to
maintain its position in certain areas, and what it needs to do to prepare for the
future.
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Integrated organisation

The Board has overseen the implementation of an integrated organisational design
whose purpose is to more directly and effectively serve our customers and ensure
alignment acrass our functions with the business’ purpose and direction.

People & Culture

A particular focus has been on ensuring the right levels of skills and experience
amongst our employees which was important to deliver Argiva’s new purpose in
the new organisational desigh. The Board has overseen a company wide
restructuring and redundancy programme which was carried out during the year.
This resulted in a significant number of changes in the employee mix — with a
number of individuals leaving the business, others being successful in being
appointed to new roles, and also a significant recruitment exercise to fill vacant
roles.

A new senior leadership group was tormed in the summer of 2020. This group has
benefitted from significant investment through personal and leadership
development activities throughout the year. The leadership group has been key to
certain Culture transformation initiatives over the course of the year and bringing
to fruition a target culture blueprint for the business.

In addition, the implementation of our post-pandemic “Work. Life. Smarter.”
practices has started and will continue to be rolled out. The intention is to enable
a migration to a hybrid home/office working model for our people.

Operational
performance

The operational performance of the business has been closely monitored by the
Board as part of the regular Board meeting agendas. In particular, the impact of
Covid 19 on the performance of the business has been considered on a2 more
frequent basis, and the relevant operational risks associated with Covid 19
continue to be carefully managed. in addition, the global component shortage has
had an impact on meter supply schedules and this has been frequently considered
by the Board and senior management.

Governance

A number of appointments/changes have been made to the Group’s executive
committee during the vyear. In addition to the business’ new integrated
organisational design, a number of improvements and updates have been made to
the business’ internal governance structures and delegated authorities.

Covid 19

The principal aims of the Board in its response to the ongoing Covid 19 pandemic
were to ensure the safety of its employees and assist individuals with the evolving
lockdown situations and ‘working from home’ realities, and also maintain
operational capability and delivery to the Group’s customers. In addition, the
Board continued to oversee the Group’s engagement with its most affected and
key customers.

Transformation

The Board has continued to oversee the programme to upgrade the Group’s IT,
systems and processes to enhance operational capability and bring efficiencies to
the Group’s operations.

Values and culture

Argiva’s values are embedded throughout the organisation, and adherence to them forms part of employees’
performance reviews and reward structure. Independent surveys of both employee and customer engagement
are undertaken. Engagement with BECTU is described under Principle & (Stakeholders) below. The Group’s
People & Culture team manitors absenteeism rates and processes are also in place to encourage and monitor
exit interviews. These form part of matters reported upon to the Operational Resilience Committee, which

reports in to the Board.
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PRINCIPLE TWO - BOARD COMPOSITION - £/rective board composition requires an effectve chicer and o Halance
of skilis, backgrounds, experience and koowledge, with ind-vidua! dicectors having sufficent capacity to maxe a
veduahle contrbutior Too size of o bourd shoold be guided by the scafe and complexdty of the cumpay,

Chair
The Group’s corporate governance structure creates a clear separation between the role of the Chair and that
of the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chair {who is independent of the Group’s Sharehalders) is a highly experienced business executive having
held many senior executive roles in the technology and telecoms sectors. The Chair has actively encouraged
open debate and discussion in the appropriate forums including main Board meetings which are scheduled to
take place at least six times per year, and also at Board sub-committee meetings (those committees being the
Audit & Risk Committee, Nominations & Governance Committee, Operational Resilience Committee, Capital
Structure Committee and the Remuneration Committee).

Balance and diversity

Thie Board has deep and refevant experience which has provided invatuable external industry input to assist
more effective decision-making in relation to a number of key matters brought before the Board. The Group
operates in a number of diverse and complex markets which require the Board to have a detailed understanding
of the relevant sector in arder to arrive at informed decisions.

Argiva is actively working with Inciusive Employers in relation to diversity and inclusion. The Group recognises
that there is further work to da in this area and continues to promote relevant initiatives. Page 36 of the Annual
Report provides a breakdown of the gender of Directors and employees.

Size and structure

The size and structure of the Board remains under periodic review so that it is best organised to meet the needs
and challenges of the Group. In terms of Board size, a balance has been struck between ensuring Shareholders
are adequately represented via their nominated Directors but also identifying directors with relevant industry
experience to be appointed together with the Group’s CEQ and CFO {see pages 43-47 of the Annual Report for
full details of the composition of the Board of Directors and Senior Executive Management). Whilst Frank
Dangeard, Mike Darcey and Sally Davis all originally joined Argiva as independent non-executive directors, each
of them were also Shareholder directors representing Macquarie, CPPIB and MTAA/IFM respectively in the year
to 30 June 2021.

We acknowledge that there is a relative lack of diversity on the Board. As part of the new appointments to the
Senior Leadership groups, improvements have been made to broaden diversity and this will continue in the
future.

Effectiveness
The Group undertook an extensive Board effectiveness/evaluation exercise in December 2020 using an external
online platform together with relevant diagnostics, and the results of the exercise were considered and
discussed at a meeting of the Nominations & Governance Committee and the Board of directors in February
2021. The key action recommendations from the exercise included the following:
- Argiva’s sustainability activities should be an increasing priority that form part of the company’s value
creation and strategic objectives.
- Diversity & inclusion and sustainability matters will be a more prominent agenda item at relevant
committee meetings and also at the Board twice a year from FY22 onwards.
- Succession planning and talent review matters will be regular agenda items for the Nominations &
Governance Committee.
- The compaosition of the Board {and/or the potential for a Board observer or external advisor) would be
kept under review to ensure the right breadth of experience and input at the Board.
- Anincreased facus by the Audit & Risk Committee in appraising strategic risk factors and whistleblowing
matters.
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PRINCIPLE THREE - DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITIES — .t noard stiowd bove o dlear undesstanding of s

dcuntalulity ang tenms of reference. ity poicies aod procedures sanuid supoaort effective decisoan-makong dnd

wdependent haflenge,

The Board has a programme of six principal meetings every year, with additional meetings arranged for key
projects, strategic matters or circumstances such as Cavid 19, as may be required.

Accountability

Decisions which are within the remit of the Board or Shareholders are set out in 2 Shareholders’ Agreement (as
Board Reserved Matters and Shareholder Reserved Matters}. There is a comprehensive Delegation of Authority
policy which sets out the responsibilities that are delegated to the Executive and thase decisions which must be
made at Board or Sharehoider levei. This policy was updated and a revised palicy brought to the June 2021
Board meeting for approval. Typically, Board or Shareholder Reserved Matters are raised at regular Board
meetings and written resolutions are obtained where otherwise required.

A Conflicts of Interest paper is maintained and regularly updated with details of Board or Shareholder conflicts.
Any conflicts which may compromise independent decision making would be raised by the Company Secretary
at the relevant Board meeting; a Cirector having a conflict is not entitled to discuss or vote on the relevant
matter, or to count in the quorum.

Committees

Five Board sub-Committees have been instituted. Pages 63-64 of the Annual Report provides an overview and
description of each of the Board sub-Committees comprising: Audit & Risk, Remuneration Committee,
Nominations & Governance and Operational Resilience. The Capital Structure Committee was established in
summer 2020, principally to oversee and recommend the activities associated with the restructuring of Argiva’s
capital structure through the repayment of a significant portion of its external debt and also the rationalisation
of its derivatives positions associated with that debt. The Capital Structure remains in place, its core focus being
the consideration and optimisation of Argiva’s capital structure. The Board sub-Committees promote effective
decision making and greater accountability and focus in relation to each of the areas covered by the respective
Board sub-Committees.

integrity of information

The Board receives regular reports from the Executive and Senior Management on key matters for which the
Board has responsibility, including strategic projects; comprehensive financial reporting; key customer and
regulatory matters; updates on operational resilience (including physical and cyber security as well as health and
safety and environmental issues); details of major bids and perfarmance of key contracts and market issues
faced by the Group as well 2s developments in technology and regulation.

The Group uploads papers to a board portal for ease of review and administration. Other than in exceptional
cases papers are submitted in advance and taken as read at 8oard meetings, allowing any presentations to focus
on highlighting key issues, discussion and dealing with guestions. The Chairs of each of the Board Committees
are aware of the importance of their position and during FY20 they have each met (virtually) with key emptoyees
of the Group to build relationships and gain direct access to those dealing with the day to day business of the
Group.

PRINCIPLE FOUR - QPPORTUNITY AND RISK -- A& Bont ot sriowid promote the isag-term sustamahle success of tae
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Opportunity

The Group’s Board maintains a focus on how the Group creates and preserves value over the long-term which
is principally achieved through a well-developed strategic and long-term planning process. The Board keeps its
strategy under review which provides a forum to present future business opportunities. Appropriate
gavernance mechanisms are in place to ensure that new business opportunities above a certain value are
considered and approved by the Board.
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Risk

The Group has a well-developed risk management process in place and continues to utilise its an online risk
assessment tool, which is used throughout the business {which is described on pages 49 of the Annual report].
The Group’s Audit and Risk function warks with the Chief Executive Officer to review and consolidate the most
significant business risks into a corporate risk register for scrutiny at quarterly Executive Committee and Audit
& Risk Committee meetings.

Argiva's key operational risks and mitigations are outlined in detail on pages 51-52 of the Annual Report.

Responsibilities
The Group has adopted the Enterprise Risk Management approach to managing its risk which has been approved
by the Group’s Audit & Risk Committee. This incorporates an internal control framework clearly defining roles
and responsibilities of those involved. Responsibilities include the following:
- The Group’s Executive Committee takes recommendations for ensuring the risk management
framework remains effective going forward;
- Processes are in place for managing the principal risks and uncertainties;
- Theinternal control framework {described on page 49 of the Group’s annual report) confirms that there
is @ manitoring and review process in place to evaluate risks at both business unit and Board level.

PRINCIPLE FIVE - REMUNERATION - A PO e’ oot 2 2xecul ve Fenune: glic
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Remuneration

A consistent approach has been adopted in setting the level and structure of remuneration in relation to each
member of the Executive Committee to secure appropriate and fair levels of remuneration. Benchmarking and
advice from external remuneration consultants is obtained. Remuneration comprises of a number of elements
including base salary, an annual bonus and a long-term incentive plan.

Page 37 of the Group's annual report provides more detail and explains how remuneration is structured to
recognise high performance reward for achieving targets in line with the Group’s sustainable success and values.
This aligns with remuneration arrangements for the remainder of the organisation where every employee’s
remuneration is made up of a combination of base salary and annual bonus (which, again, is linked to personal
performance and achieving financial targets in line with the Group’s objectives). Following a review of the
Group’s remuneration structures by the new Chief People Officer, initiatives in the year to 30 June 2021 have
included new approaches to reward and incentives that underpin future cost savings while ensuring
transparency and alignment with shareholder objectives.

Policies

The Group has delegated remuneration matters to the Remuneration Committee {which is a committee of the
Board). The Remuneration Committee gperates in accordance with documented terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee is committed to take into account the pay and employment conditions of the Group’s
wider workforce when making recommendations in refation ta Executive pay.

The Group’s bonus and long-term incentive plans are documented in writing and reviewed at least annually by
the Remuneration Committee and any payments made operate against documented performance targets.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee considers the company wide annual pay increase on an znnual basis.
As part of this process, the Remuneration Committee will assess increases against certain ¢riteria including
taking into account ather comparative pay metrics in the industry, discussions held with BECTU, the existing and
future financial capacity of the business, and also aligning with the iong term sustainable success of the
company. Inthe year to 30 June 2021, annual pay negotiations were concluded with BECTU with agreement to
g0 to a ballot of its members. This occurred in early July 2021 and agreement was reached on the business’
proposals.
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Stakeholders

The Group’s key Stakeholders include its employees; customers; suppliers; debt investors; Shareholders;
pensions trustees; and regulatory and government bodies including Ofcom, DCMS and BEIS.  Senior
Management and the Strategy and Regulatory team work closely with industry and lobby groups and
representatives of the various regulatory bodies, and the Board is regularly briefed informally and formally on
developments. The value of good relationships with local communities, in the context of planning reguirements
for example, is understood and focus is given to fostering these refationships. The Group provides reports to
investors and creditors as part of its listed debt obligations and conducts regular investor calls which give the
opportunity for debt investors to raise questions with the Group. The Group’s procurement operations function
actively undertakes reviews of its supplier base and to enhance its best practice in this field.

Workforce

Argiva communicates to its employees through regular email newsletters, updates over email directly from the
CEO and local messaging from the Executive Management. The CEQ and Executive Management have also
conducted small listening groups in person where possible. However, due to the Covid 19 pandemig, the use of
five broadcasts and presentations streamed online (rather than roadshows] has continued and this has been
well received by employees. This has been done alongside interactive question functionality which enables a
live dialogue with the workforce. Individual video interviews with members of the Executive Management have
also been published an the Argiva intranet. During the Covid 19 pandemic in particular, the Executive
Management team has been the principal conduit through which the Board has been able to assess workfarce
considerations and related views for the purposes of their decision making processes.

The Group has active union representation from BECTU, as well as an elected Emplayee Board, and employee
forums threoughout the different functions. The People & Culture team work closely with each of these bodies,
consulting on any proposed changes to terms; policies and processes; as well as seeking feedback on workplace
morale, culture and issues of concern or interest to the workforce. In the year to 30 June 2021, due to the
company wide restructuring and redundancy programme, the interaction bhetween Argiva, its Employee Board
and BECTU has been heightened. A constructive and pro-active dialogue was swiftly established between the
parties and a canstructive relationship has been cemented as a result.

External impacts

The Group’s Corporate Responsibility statement sets out, on pages 34-37 of the Directors’ Report, a description
of the Group's focus areas used to ensure that it acts responsibly, ethically and safely, from a Corporate:
Community; Employee; and Business perspective. The statement also includes a summary of the Group’s
approach to enviranmental factors.
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting (SECR)

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and Year ended Year ended
energy use data for the period 1 30 June 2021 30 June 2020 {Restated)*
July 2020 to 30 June 2021
Energy consumption used to 222,357,758 290,282,567
calculate emissions (kWh)
Energy consumption break down (kWh):
Gas 2,055,282 2,207,196
Electricity 215,261,826 279,439,417
Transport fuel 5,040,650 8,635,854
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes TCO2e
Gas cansumption 376 406
Owned transport (fleet} 1,120 1,557
Total Scope 1 1,496 1,963
hScope 2 emissions in metric tonnes TCO2e
Purchased electricity
Market Based 639 -
Location Based 46,471 65,148
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes TCO2e
Bus!ness trgvel in employee owned 129 387
vehicles / hire
Total gross emissions in metric tonnes TCO2e
Market Based 2,264 -
Location Based 48,096 67,498
Intensity Ratio
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Intensity ratio of Total TCO2e / £m 349 )
revenue — market-based method )
| it ioof T
ntensity ratio ° atal TCO2e / fm 74.31 74.76
revenue — location-based method

* Prior year balances have been restated to take into account bills received for the 2020 financial year ofter the signing dote
of the prior year financial statements.

Energy Efficiency Action taken

Video conferencing capability has been vastly improved through the introduction of more stable software and
efficient technology enabling the opportunity from working from the home environment a more sustainable
option negating the need for business travel and personal commuting.

LED lighting has continued to be deployed in beth office and meeting room refurbishments across the
corporate and technical estate.

A significant proportion of the reduction in electricity consumption is attributable to the sale of the telecoms
division to Cellnex, however a number of energy efficiencies were identified during the COVID -19 pandemic in
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pdrlicular reducing office heating, lighting and maintenance obligations across the estate reducing business
travel.

Argiva continue to purchase over 93% of its energy consumed in the transmission networks and buildings
(office and technical) from renewable energy supplies supported by REGO certification

Quantification and Reporting Methodology

Our electricity consumption data for the financial year is taken from billing data received plus an estimate has
been made for bills stili to be received in respect of the 2021 financial year as at the date of these financial
statements.

Emissions figures include costs that are passed through to customers but are not disclosed separately within
these financial statements,

Our Carban accounting methodology is based on the following guidance:

*  Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Standard — World Resources Institute
¢ 2021 UK Government's Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

» Environmental reporting Guidelines 2019 (including streamlined energy and carbon reporting guidance)
March 2019
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Directors Report

Financial Risk Management

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group have been outlined previausly in this report (see pages 48-
52). As a result of these, as well as the on-going business activities and strategy of the Group, Argiva is exposed
to variety of financial risks that include financing risk, purchase price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate

risk and fareign exchange risk.

The key financial risks affecting the Group are set out below, together with a surnmary of how these risks are
managed.

w .
; The Group will need to refinance
» at least part of our debt as it
matures and may need additional
financing te cover capital
expenditure and certain other
expenses to support its growth
plans. The Group cannot be
certain that such financing will be
readily available on attractive or
historicatly comparable terms,

Breach of debt covenants and/or
a downgrade in our rating could
impact the availability of finance
or the comparability of terms.

Energy is a major component of
the Group’s cost base and is
subject to price volatility.

The Group is exposed to credit
risk on customer receivabies.

The Group is exposed to
counterparty risks in its financing
operations.

The Group mitigates this risk by the strength of the
stable long-term investment grade capital structure in
ptace. Our BBB ratings reflect our string ability to
service and repay debt from pur cash flows over a
reasonable period of time, maintaining debt with a
variety of medium and long term maturities, sg that
over time we do not have a significant concentration
of debt due for refinancing in any given year, and
aiming to refinance debt well in advance of the
maturity date,

with regards to covenants the Group maintains
financial covenant monitoring and modelling, both
retrospectively and prospectively and maintains
regular dialogue with credit ratings agencies.

A large proportion of this risk is managed via pass-
through arrangements ta customers. The Group’s
residual exposure to fluctuations in the electricity
price is managed by forward purchasing the majority
of power requirements. Key revenue and cost
milestones are set on larger projects to ensure the
financial risks of volatite market pricing are mitigated.

Credit risk is managed through appropriate credit
checking procedures prior to taking on new
customers; and higher risk customers paying in
advance of services being provided. Performance is
closely monitored to ensure agreed service levels are
maintained reducing the level of queried payments
and mitigating the risk of uncollectible debts.

The Group carefully manages the credit risk on liquid
funds and derivative financial instruments with
balances currently spread across a range of major
financial institutions which have satisfactory credit
ratings assigned by international credit ratings
agencies. The levels of credit risk are monitored
through the Group's on-going risk management
processes, which include a regular review of the
credit ratings. Risk in this area is limited further by
setting a maximum level and term for deposits with
any single counterparty.
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Ensuring the Group has sufficient
available funds for working

" capital requirements and planned
" growth and funding for the

. Defined Benefit pension scheme.

Exposure to interest rate risk due
. to borrowing variable rate bank

debt.

The Group operates from UK sites
~ and predominantly in the UK

" market. While some customer
and supplier contracts are
denominated in other currencies
(mainly US Dollars and Euros), the
~ majority of the Group’s revenues
- and costs are sterling based, and
- accordingly exposure to foreign
exchange is limited.

1he Group maintains cash reserves and access to
undrawn committed facilities to cover forecast
requirements. As at 30 June 2021 the Group had
£243.5m cash availabte and £250.0m of liquidity
facilities available to cover senior interest payment if
required. This facility was refinanced to a £150m
facility shortly after the reporting date together with
a £100m working capital facility. The Group also has a
£30.0m facility to support ‘Comms Hub Receivables
Purchasing’. The Board considers the availability and
adequacy of working capital funding requirements in
conjunction with forming its tong-term financial plan
for the business.

The Group uses derivative cantracts to hedge its
exposure to rising interest rates. The Group maintains
a hedging policy to manage interest rate risk and to
ensure the certainty of future interest cash flows and
compliance with debt covenants. The derivative
contracts held are fixed rate hedging, split between
interest rates and inflation-linked swaps. The Group
has, however, elected not to apply hedge accounting
meaning gains and losses are recognised through the
income statement as fair values fluctuate (2021:
£11.1m loss; 2020: £121.7m gains}. Interest rate
swaps convert variable rate interest costs to fixed
rate interest costs while inflation-linked swaps
convert fixed or floating rate interest costs to RPJ-
linked costs, which fluctuate in line with the RPI index
as do a significant proportion of the Group’s revenue
contracts.

Management regularly monitors the impact of foreign
exchange risks and assess the need to put any
mitigating financial instruments in place. During the
year the Group fully repaid its US Dollar denominated
private placements notes and closed out the related
cross currency swaps. No foreign currency
denominated debt was held at 30 fune 2021.
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Internal control over financial reporting

The Board of Directors review the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of internal control, including risk
management systems and financial and operational controls (see page 48).

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee includes representation from the Board of Directors. Frank Dangeard stood down
as a non-executive director of Argiva Group Limited and relevant group companies with effect from 1 July
2021. Frank also stood down fram Board committee memberships, including his role as chair of the Audit & Risk
Committee. Since 1 July, Frank has been appointed as a board observer and has also conducted oversight
responsibilities of the Audit & Risk Committee. The proposal is that this role will continue for an interim period
and will be kept under review by the Chair and the Board of Directors. Mike Parton will chair Audit & Risk
Committee meetings (or another committee member may be appointed to chair the meetings as required). The
Audit & Risk Committee continues to have representation from the Board of Directors.

In addition, it has responsibilities of oversight of risk management procedures, monitoring compliance and
regulatory issues {including whistleblowing arrangements) and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls and internal audit function.

The Commiittee is autharised to seek any information it requires from any emplayee of the Campany in order to
perform its duties, and to obtain any external legal or other professional counsel it requires.

Meetings of the Committee are attended, at the invitation of the Chairman of the Committee, by the external
auditors, the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and representatives from the business as
required.

internal Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing the work undertaken by the Group’s internal audit
function, assessing the adequacy of the function’s resource and the scope of its procedures. The internal audit
function agrees its annual audit plan with the Audit and Risk Committee and regularly reports its findings and
recommendations. The Group’s internal audit plan incorporates an annual rolling review af business activities
and incorporates both financial and non-financial controls and procedures.

Externgl Audit

The Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board ¢n the appointment,
re-appointment and removat of the Group’s external auditor. The Committee makes an assessment of the
auditors’ independence and objectivity taking into account the relationship with the auditers as a whole,
including the provision of any non-audit services.

PwC were re-appointed as external auditor in 2016 following a competitive tender process.

The auditors have provided certain non-audit services, principally in relation to non-audit assurance. The Audit
and Risk Committee considers the acceptability of all non-audit services with the auditors in advance of
commencement of work to confirm acceptability and ensures that appropriate safeguards of audit
independence are established and applied, such as partner rotation.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, charred by Sally Davis, is established to make recommendations to the Board
regarding executive remunerations, including pension rights and to recommend and monitor the level and
structure of remuneration for each member of the Executive Committee. Additional oversight is extended to
setting and monitoring reward and icentive palicies, including the Group-wide anrual bonus scheme, and
reviewing and making recommendations in relation to wider reward policies.
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Governance and Nurriinalion Committee

The Governance and Nomination Committee, chaired by Mike Parton, is established to give oversight to the size,
structure and composition {including skills, experience, independence, knowledge and diversity) of the Board to
ensure that the continued leadership ability is sufficient to allow the business to compete effectively in the
market. This alsa includes gversight of the succession planning for directors (and other senior executives where
apprapriate).

Operational Resilience Committee

The Operational Resilience Committee, chaired by Mike Darcey, has oversight of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the operationai resilience strategies and procedures of the Group {including principles, policies and practices
adopted in complying with al! statutory, and sub-statutary, standards and regulatory requirements in respect of
safety, health and environment (‘'SHE') matters affecting the activities of the Group). This includes consideration
and risk management of areas of significant and individual cyber security, physical security, business continuity
and SHE risk.

Equal Opportunities policy

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the respective
aptitudes and abilities of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, every
effort s made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues and the appropriate training arranged.
It is the policy of the Group that the training, career development and promotion of a disabled person, should,
as far as possibie, be identical ta that of a person who does not have a disability. Further information on how
Argiva supports its employees can be found on page 36.

Politicat Donations

No pofitical donations were made during the year (2020: none).

Charitable donations

The Group has made £0.1m (2020: £0.1m) of charitable donations in the year.
Research and development

The Group performs research and development into new products and technology, the costs of which are
capitalised where they meet the criteria for capitalisation in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The
research costs expensed in the year were £2.0m (2020: £5.2m}. In addition, the Group carries out research and
development as part of its contract bid processes and these costs are expensed as part of the bid costs unless
the development expenditure can be capitalised. The bid costs expensed during the year total £1.3m (2020:
£4.1m).

Development costs incurred as part of capital expenditure projects, which support customers contracts, are
included with the total project spend within property, plant and equipment. The Group’s capital expenditure in
the year was £104.0m (2020: £247.0m) and includes capitalised labour of £34.4m (2020: £39.3m). Other
development costs are capitalised within intangible assets. in the year, new development costs capitalised total
£0.3m [2020: £2.7m) with amortisation of £1.6m (2020: £1.6m) charged against such capitalised development
costs.

Overseas branches

The Group has trading branches based in the Isle of Mann, the Channel Islands and France.
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Events after the reporting date

On Sth July 2021, the Group refinanced its bank facilities and now has access to a £100.0m Working Capital Facility
maturing in 2024 and a 25 year £150.0m Liquidity Fund. These facilities are floating rate in nature with a margin
over SONIA of between 120 and 130bps. Argiva Financing Nod Limited {"AF1’) is the borrower under all of these
arrangements.

On 10 August 2021 a fire broke out at our Bilsdale transmitter site. Our engineers have worked on a four-stage
recovery plan to reinstate services present on the mast. Through phases 1 and 2 of our recovery plan, around
500,000 households have now been returned to a coverage area through utilisation of other sites and radio
services (FM and DAB) have also been restored for many. Works have been completed for the improvement of
TV coverage from our Eston Nab site and an additional 15metre mast has been installed at a site in Arncliffe
Wood in order to extend coverage from this site to achieve this. Phase 3 of the recovery plan involves the
erection of a temporary mast at the Bilsdale site which is expected to restore signals to over 90% of affected
households. Work began on the temporary mast on 13 September following a fegal process to secure access 1o
the new site. Phase 4 of the recovery plan will be to complete the enduring solution. Management are still
assessing the financial impact of the incident and the assets damaged by the fire, and have engaged with the
Group's insurers.

Dividends and transfers to reserves

MNow Digital (East Midlands), a Group company which includes a non-controlling interest, declared a dividend in
the year of £0.4m {2020: £0.4m).

The Directors’ of the Group have not recommended a dividend in the year (2020: nil).
The consolidated profit for the year of £504 9m {2020: loss of £322.8m) was transferred to reserves.
Going Concern

The Strategic report includes infarmation on the structure of the business, the business environment, financial
review for the year and uncertainties facing the Group. Notes 20, 23 and 25 of the consolidated financial
statements include information on the Group's cash, borrowings and derivative respectively; and financial risk
management information presented within this report.

The Group meets our day-to-day working capital and financing requirements through the net cash generated
from our operations. The Group performs a review of going concern through a review of forecasting including
cash flaw forecasts and considering the requirements of capital expenditure and debt repayments. The Group
has sufficient financial resources which, together with internally generated cash flows, will continue to provide
sufficient sources of liquidity to fund our current operations, including our contractual and commercia!
commitments both in terms of capital programmes and financing. For this reason, the Directors are confident
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the fareseeable future. Thus,
they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing this financial information.

Following the sale of the Group’s Telecoms infrastructure and related assets on 8 July 2020, management have
significantly deleveraged the Group, and maintain a cash position sufficient to meet current liabilities as they fall
due.

The Directors have also taken into account the patential implication of the current COVID-19 situation and have
determined that given there will continue to be demand for services provided by the Group and the Group has
a mixed customer base, the going concern basis remains appropriate.

future Developments

The Group plans to continue in its commercial and operational business in accordance with its strategy. Further
detail is contained within the Strategic report on page 19.
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Ownership and Directors

A descriptian of the ownership of the Group and the Board of Directors holding office during the year and up to
the date of signing of the financial statements can be found on page 43.

At 30 lune 2021, Mike Parton was the Group's independent Chairman. Rachael Whitaker was the Company
Secretary at 30 June 2021, Rachael Whitaker resigned the role on 1 July 2021 and Jeremy Mavor was reappointed
as the Company Secretary on 1 luly 2021,

For details on the background of the Board of Directors and the Executive Committee please refer to page 43.
Details of the statutory directars of the Company are shown on page 130.
Directors Indemnitics

The Company has provided an indemnity for its Directors and the Company Secretary, which is a qualifying third-
party indemnity for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force during the full financial
year and up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to the Independent Auditors
The Directors of the Group in office at the date of approval of this report confirm that:

So far as the Directors are aware there is no relevant audit information of which the Auditors are
unaware; and

- Each Director has taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to make themselves aware
of any retevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of that
information.
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards
in confarmity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the group for
that period. In preparing the financial statements, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s state whether applicable international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 have been followed for the Group financial statements and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 have been followed for the Company financial statements,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unkess it is inappropriate to presume that
the Group and Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounung records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group's and Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006.

The directors are respansible far the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the

United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions.

On behalf of the Board

Mike Parton

Director
21 September 2021
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Consolidated income statement

Year ended 30 June 2021

- Tntai
e
10 2
Gross profrt 4122 2.9 1154
123 RS Tu& o)
o 47 j9 7
o S e - 75 61 i25.4)
e Tt - {74941 ey
Operating profit - 138.5 1.9 140.4
0 -
{Loss] / profit before tax {597.2) 1.030.1 +12.9
[Losy) / protit fay the year {529.5} i.034.3 503.8
\l
5049
Footig 0 et i 0 T0A R S e TATE T L T ey T ey

182.3

(1905
fi0 3

3

“

!
ol

el

in

1300.3)

[390.5)

Year ended 30 june 2020

Total

fm

149.8 032.2
1o, 2z 2
nn 1043
fi2) (44, 7)
{184, {id9 2,

e 1

95.7 28) 2
81.3 (3153.0)
7.7 (322.8!

1322.8)
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Note

Profit / {loss) for the year

Items that witl not be reclassified subsequently to protit orloss

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit ar loss

R AN L

Total other compreheasive income / [loss)

Total comprehensive income / {loss)

Argiva oot Linvesed poompa iy oo G5 25800 1

Year ended
30 June 2021

501.9

200

524.9

5249

Year ended
30 june 2020

1322.8)

1332.4)

{332.4)

N
e
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Consolidated statement of financial position

Non-current assets

Current assats

Total assers

Current Yiabihties

Net current liaihties

Nor-currenst habidities

Total liabhties

Net liatulities

B ATy L e

DMBAN, e

RNV D

30 June 2021

1327

4327

36069

12,555.6]

[2.555.6)

12,122.9)

{1521 6}
[7.177 2}

{3.570 %)

30 june 2320

3164.1

3138

1.50G 2

16643

{2,592 )

1.

(3.022.0)

{1,521 8

15737 3)
(8,759.4}

(4,895 1)
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Consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

Equty

Total equity

Mike Partan

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£m £m
i
1
(3.570.3) (4,095 1)

Srgie 1 Grodp o teg ivsmpany tag i 2o k30 1) 50
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Total Fgusty

sttributable to fNan

Share Share Teanslaran owners of the roatroHing Tatal
ote vapit il preminm Accumudated loaues reserve Pyrant interosts ety
=m £ £m £y cm =m £
Balance at 1iuly 2019 553.9 3156 (14,7323 (] [3.763.5) 1.0 {3,762.6)
P T TEN N , B I

R A [E !
Balance at 30 June 202¢Q 653.9 315.6 (5,065.1) (0.7} 14,096.3) 12 [4,095.1}

R Cor- S : =
Balance at 30 lune 2021 553 9 3156 {3,540.7) (5] {3,571.7} 14 13.576.3}
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Net cash mfiow / (outflow) from investing activities

Financing acthivities

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Increase 1n cash and cash equivaleats

Note

Areprva Grong Lisnted teompany teg J5 254001

Year ended
30 hune 2021

Em

398.7

(1,999.6]

1334
1101
2335

Year ended
30 tune 2020

Em

139.0

{115.0)

(284 2}

89 8
203
1101

[$5]
[
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Notes to the Group financial statements

1 General information, authorisation of financial statements and Statement of
Compliance
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3 Significant accounting policies
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Medis

Distribution Networks
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Geographical information
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6 Operating profit
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7 Exceptional items
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[a)

8 Employees

The ayerase montn v oumbes af persons frepresentay '

WA s TR0

Year ended
30 June 2021

Number

Tatal enpluyees 1.528

Year ended
30 kine 2020
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9 Finance income

V- i v Year ended
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" Total

" £m
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- LI i 27
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11 Other gains and losses

Note

Othar flasses) [ gans
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14 Goodwill
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16 Property, plant and equipment

freehold land
and buildings

£m
Cost
« ! i
4 . 1= 1 -
L e 3220
o
At 30 June 2021 32653
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o AT 57.1
At 30 June 2021 58.9
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17 Interest in associates and joint ventures
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18 Trade and other receivables

30 iune 2021 30 June 2020

Trade and other recewables

Contract assets  accrued income

£m £m
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19 Deferred tax

The pa'sce of vererred tadrovogemsed at 30 June 2021 15
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20 Cash and cash equivalents

30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£m £m
Total cash and cash eguivalents 2435 110.1
21 Discontinued operations and disposal group held for sale
O 5 anly 22200 1r e Gro o soid its Tre pofit ontire fiposal of e The post-ticzan oo disoosa: of

Toicwoims mtrastracters 35 oiaterd Giscant i

feg b 100

A opeiation ool sulnel” distontin et uErA0 LW 1,

PO UK Lo 00reTio v T s 0t s e 1)t denEooe 35 talin s

trahnstycn Srgrenaid ng

P

30 june 2021

fm

o CEE A S . 1.8204

782.1

T P - . - 10383

Result of discontinued operations
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Statement of cash flows
sh o icludes the fol oweng smount- relarmg to deeo sheued operat oo

S0

The starement o1 03

30 June 2021
£m

w

Assets and liabilities of disposal group held for sale

30 June 2020
£m

35.2

30 june 2021

£m

Assets held for sale

tiaknhties held for sate

22 Trade and other payables

30 June 2020

£m

1.186.4

{129.6)

30 June 2021

£m
Current
Trade and other payahles
T o
- -
Yy

120.0
Contract habilities  deferred income 49.5
Non-current

354.5

Contract liabibties  deferred income

Aegpye aroup - outed Tomipany o dh )

30 June 2020

£m

2776

36 6

232.9

i 112

5400
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23 Borrowings

Denomunated currency 30 June 2021
£m
Within current babiities:
i 1
' 1 5 A
N AT N .
. ' N . - T .
- e . L therore I
Borrowings due within one year 23329
Withm non-current liabilities
! . 287 6
. . B
L 1.321.3
. N :
, S . 21181
- . - 86.3
Borrawings due atter maore than goe year 38164
Analbysis of total borrowings by currency”

Total borrowings 6,179.3

o e e T Tt n 1793
Senhr T TReS sy ety e

T Tee g nelog

30 tune 2020

im

22158

386.2

200.0
1.861.6

2,118 1
101.2
1,707.1

6,922.9
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Bank foans fo a0t the . L
senior debt Other loans compnse
senior bonds and notes

AT OST A Cos s ped anoved s 5 Al e -

12020 H 420 i+ junior honds

30 June 2021 30 June 2020

£fm Em

85,1793 6,934.9
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the P gl LT

DOTrOW e O

IR
I

se balow

Borrowings. Referenge At 1uly 2020 lease Amounts repaud AL 30 June 2021
movements
£m £rm tm £m
IR T i
e , L . St AR
Total bank loans and private placements 2,930.0 - {1,262.8) 1,677.2

Total borrowings excluding accrued interest 5,211.¢
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24 Leases

Leases as lessee {IFRS 16)
The Grooy noide loase g acgemesrs poman y colat o o tand 2ed puild o zs chiont cantract, aad vohir e,

Right-of-use assets

Boaht-nf-ism ansors to atedd o sy eert Jrodet e 3ol et e than Suesl @ prope Tty are prgse ted 4y s e

orp et PNt ol B e i IEdsEs T dtE Ta the e b Bhre 0trer Paae teiern iy e dtion, Loes qan 5T

Se] T

Leasehald buildings Plant and Total
£ equipment
Em £m
o i
b 1 . -
4. !
At 30 june 2020 68.3 510 1193
e EE RN Lobe e i
Balance at 30 Jlune 2021 ad 6 35.3 99.9
Amounts recognised in the Income Statement
Leases under IFRS 16 Year ended Year enderd
30 June 2021 30 june 2020
tm tm
...... R . i f Ve -
1,0 1 1

Amounts recognised in the Cashflow Statement

Y¥ear ended 30 Year ended 30

lune 2021 June 2020
£Em £im
) Sy ‘-

21

Uoanonedi pote 25 Forane v 7 smienen 0 1 e nae saemee
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25 Financial instruments and risk management

Capital risk management
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The followirg tab 25 st ouf the
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36 tune 2021
Within
ane year
£m
o oA H
103.8
S b ~
A " 1
1 2 . .
' ' ' " - . 1" -
Toral swaps 78.9
Total finanmial habrlity 280.3
o ' . - f "
. [ it
e R IFR RIS IR e

Ameounts falling due

Between
ane and Between After
two two and five
years five years years Total
tm £Em Em £m
56.8 3,209 7 618.6 1,008.9
i H :
b
5311 1810 137 3456.7
207.3 5.766.0 781.8 70384

Interest
to be
inctrred
in future
periods

Effect of
discounting

fm Em

{50.3;

{30.9)

{80 7) 1310 3

Total finangial
liakility per
statement of
financial
position

£m

13.9
89.1
3.8253
3.958.6

107 3

11.0
22312

i6.8)
333.1

326.3
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Amaunts falling due

Interest Tatal financiat
Between ta be liability per
30 tune 2020 one and Between After incurred statement of
Within two wwo and five Effect of in future financial
one year years five years years Total discounting pariods position
fm Em Em £m £m £m £m £m
T e ' 119
o . oo : - - 81.1
ol Tl o 5,088 1
513.5 1536 3,775.0 8957 5,339 8 (123 7} 5.211.1
ol B - 1229
‘ - N K 0T ' 9.5
T R 1.713.3
! FRTI « ) 1 - . o 261.5
o i 5 N ; N I K 507 8
ol

r - I {50.6)
Total swaps B89 6 115.5 335%.2 230.0 7704 {51 7) 718.7
Total tinancial Habudity F28.0 385.7 6,048.8 1.260.8 8,123.3 {180.4] {366 3 77766
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27 Notes to the cash flow statement

Reco~o b frooe goeribng ot 1 52t cash g onerat- g ach winies:

Year anded Year anded
30 June 2021 30 June 2020
£rrr £€m
1o
™ = P [T i _ 2
i e ; |
1 W I ' ' -
.
[
B ni
TR I
Cash generated from aperating actiaities a00 2 488.9
Net cash from operating activities 3a8.7 189.0
Ay, s oot paoges ey Al ban b e
Changes in Changesin Other changes
financing foregn Changesn including
At 1july cash flows exchange far value accrued interest At 30 June
2020 {Cash) {Non-cash) {Non rash) [Non cashi 2021
£m £m £m fm £m Em
-t - -
. N
Totat -
T T T A0 I C0T O aGE S r08T, a0 e

S e e T ey
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28 Financial commitments and contingent liabilities

Financing commitments
S e T T st . S oL e s sunst Tt aty all of ey 3s,ers by

Wwaty OF 3 Whote Busimess Secintisaton stroicture,

Capital commitments
Commitments tor the soqresit 00 At alins and egoan et ooptracted for 9 the cenostmg gare b o ecomnaed e

Can Py ey ihle as o T

30 hune 2021 30 june 2020
£m £m
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AP B T

Denctr pian was s foilows

30 June 2021 30 fune 2020
£m £m

Surplus at 30 june 7.1 16.1
TorGroan ®as .o ooy,
5 [
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Year ended Year ended
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30 Related party transactions
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Company statement of financial poéifibn

Current assets
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Company statement of changes in equity

Share capitat” Share premium Retained earnings Total eginty
£m tm tm £m
Balance at 1 luly 2019 653.9 315.6 {853.1) 116.4
Bafance at 30 June 2020 6539 315.6 {980.2} {10 7)
T S I S |
Bulgnce al 30 lune 2021 653.9 3150 {981.0) {115}
N - eont oy - R T | 4 [

Argreed sroug cmated campany ro g DS 137
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1 Argiva Group Limited accounting policies and other information
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2 Directors’ remuneration
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3 Deferred tax
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